GUARANTEED
WORKMAMNSHIP

MIRABELL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

XENERERARAT

(mcorporatad in the Cayman Islands with limited liabiliby)
(FEBRBRERRECIARER)

Annual Report 2006~2007 F i

Stock Code M 4CEE | 1179

* Far ldaniBcalion purpomes enly SRR






CONTENTS
B &

Corporate Information

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis
Notice of Annual General Meeting
Report of the Directors

Corporate Governance Report
Independent Auditor’s Report
Consolidated Income Statement
Consolidated Balance Sheet

Balance Sheet

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Notes to the Financial Statements
Group Structure

Five-year Financial Summary

5
el
e

H
=i
%}5
of

EIRE 2w R DA

BRRBEFAGRE

ExgWmE

hFEHBRE

Pages

BE#

14

21

42

57

59

60

62

63

65

67

137

143



CORPORATE INFORMATION
AR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Tang Wai Lam (Chairman and Managing Director)
Ng Man Kit, Lawrence (Deputy Managing Director)

Chung Chun Wah
Leung Kelvin Yiu Fai
(appointed on 1 August 2006)

Non-executive Directors

Lee Kwan Hung
Lee Kin Sang*
Chan Ka Sing, Tommy*
Ng Chun Chuen, David*
* Independent Non-executive Director

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Lee Kin Sang (Chairman)
Chan Ka Sing, Tommy
Ng Chun Chuen, David

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Chan Ka Sing, Tommy (Chairman)
Lee Kin Sang

Ng Chun Chuen, David

Tang Wai Lam

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT
Leung Kelvin Yiu Fai
COMPANY SECRETARY
Leung Kelvin Yiu Fai
REGISTERED OFFICE

Ugland House

South Church Street

P.O. Box 309

George Town, Grand Cayman

Cayman Islands
British West Indies

/#/IRABELL

Exg
HITES

WENR (TEREFREE)

RRG (EFFEKEE)

&R E
(R=ZZBEERFNA-REZT)

FBTES

T
FEA
PR oK 2 *
RIRR*
* BUIFMTEF

EREESE
FRE(XE)
R &
RIRR
FMEES
Rx2 (XE)
FEs
RIR R

R ER
BERGIE
DNEME
A EE

Ugland House

South Church Street

P.O. Box 309

George Town, Grand Cayman
Cayman Islands

British West Indies



CORPORATE INFORMATION
AR

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

8/F, Wyler Centre, Phase Il
200 Tai Lin Pai Road

Kwai Chung

New Territories

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

1179

WEBSITE
www.mirabell.com.hk
LEGAL ADVISORS

Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo
26/F, Jardine House

1 Connaught Place
Central

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
22/F, Prince’s Building
Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Bank of Bermuda (Cayman) Limited
P.O. Box 513 G.T.

Strathvale House

North Church Street

George Town, Grand Cayman
Cayman Islands

British West Indies

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Abacus Share Registrars Limited
26/F, Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Hang Seng Bank Limited
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

BREENRTELXME

BB

R EOR

AN BEE 20057
FEfm O F28I8E

i 13 X 5%

1179

484t
www.mirabell.com.hk
HEEER

BARA AR R AR 1T
BFEPIR

FF 45 [ 35 1 5%

B MAKE 261

7% 4]

B FC oK B & R AN S A P
HE ST
BBRRANFKRE22E

FERGBFERE

Bank of Bermuda (Cayman) Limited
P.O. Box 513 G.T.

Strathvale House

North Church Street

George Town, Grand Cayman
Cayman lIslands

British West Indies

EEREZROBFEFERLSE
HHBEEELBR QA
BB BT

2R RNBH28H

S EEP L2612
FTEXRET
BAIRITHER QA
ERBT(HFEB)BRART

/#/IRABELL



3

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ETRBE

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present this annual report for the year
ended 28 February 2007.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The turnover of the Group for the year ended 28 February
2007 was HK$934,225,000 whereas the profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company was HK$105,462,000.

The board of directors has resolved not to recommend a
final dividend. An interim dividend of HK1.5 cents per
share was paid on 18 December 2006.

FACED WITH CHALLENGES AS WELL AS OPPORTUNITIES

During the year, consumer confidence in the local market
continued to improve in line with the soaring stock market,
the decrease in unemployment rate and the increase in
salaries. The general increase in purchasing power was
favourable to our business. On the contrary, the Group
was faced with keen market competition and at the same
time the rental and operational costs increased. The Group
increased advertising campaigns and marketing activities
as well as renovated the retail outlets in order to further
promote brand awareness. The management placed the
greatest effort to strengthen the Group’s competitiveness
in the marketplace.

The consumer spending power in the Mainland China had
been continuing to grow at a remarkable rate during the
year. Accordingly, the Group opened new retail outlets
strategically in prime shopping areas located mainly in the
first and second tier cities. Meanwhile, the management
focused on store performance improvement. Effective cost
controls were also in place to maintain high operational
efficiency. The Group has built up a “value-for-money”
reputation for its good quality products at competitive
prices.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ETRBE

During the year, the market conditions were extremely
tough and worsened by the weak consumer sentiment in
the Taiwan market. However, the market awareness of
the brand of Fiorucci was greatly enhanced by a distinct
product mix and image. The Group will build upon the
market position to solidify the business in Taiwan.

FUTURE BUSINESS STRATEGIES

To meet the challenges ahead, the Group will adopt the
following business strategies:

1. To make use of the advantage of multi-brand
business model

The Group offers a wide range of footwear products
at varied retail prices targeted at different customer
segments. The management will continue to keep
abreast of changing market trends and identify
products that are distinctive to differentiate itself from
competitors.

2. To actively seek exclusive international brand
distribution rights

The Group actively seeks exclusive international brand
distribution rights to build a strong product portfolio.
The Group aims at expanding customer base through
diversification of product mix and reviews
merchandising plans regularly to match the ever-
changing customer needs.

3. To further increase retail outlets in the Mainland
China

As a result of the continuous economic growth in the
Mainland China resulting in rapid increase in
purchasing power of customers, there will be great
opportunities for the Group to further expand the
retail business. The Group will actively increase retail
outlets in the Mainland China.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ETRBE

To develop wholesale business in the Mainland
China

The management sees the importance in the
development of wholesale business as it reduces
purchasing costs and raises gross profit as well as
provides the Group with a synergy effect in terms of
further strengthening the product mix, brand
development and promotion.

To strengthen our brand awareness in the
marketplace

The Group is committed to strengthening our brand
awareness by increasing advertising and promotion
activities in the marketplace.

To enhance the operational efficiency by
upgrading management information systems

For the purposes of building up more efficient
management information systems in response to ever-
increasing customer demand, the Group will upgrade
the existing management information systems and the
IT infrastructure in the Mainland China, Hong Kong,
Macau and Taiwan progressively. The management
considers that the upgraded management information
systems will improve the Group’s operations,
merchandising, inventory and supply chain
management.

To closely monitor and control the increase in
operating costs

The Group expects that the operating costs particularly
rental and staff expenses will increase. In order to
maintain our competitive advantage, the management
will closely monitor and control the increase in
operating costs.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ETRBE

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the board of directors, | would like to take
this opportunity to express my gratitude to all shareholders
and business partners for their support and to all
employees for their hard work.

Tang Wai Lam
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 June 2007
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBzwmAL R D

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Group recorded a turnover of
HK$934,225,000, representing an increase of 7.85%,
compared with last year. The profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company increased by 61.02% to
HK$105,462,000.

The Hong Kong and Macau market

The Group was faced with a year full of challenges as well
as opportunities. On the one hand, the local economy
had been improving progressively evidenced by the soaring
stock market, decrease in unemployment rate and increase
in consumer sentiment. On the other hand, the number
of visitors from the Mainland China was less than expected
and the operating costs remained high. The keen market
competition posed high pressure and great challenges to
us.

To cope with the challenges, the Group reviewed the
operational strategies from time to time. The management
is of the view that our multi-brand strategy enables the
Group not only to target a broader clientele but also to
stand out from competitors. During the year, the Group
focused on store performance improvement and brand
building particularly by means of strengthening product
development. In the meantime, the management strived
for providing customers with excellent services beyond their
expectations. As a result, the retail business in the Hong
Kong and Macau market continued to progress steadily
during the year. The gross profit margin of the retail
business recorded an increase owing to the improved sales
of exclusive international brand products. However, the
increased gross profit margin was nearly offset by high
rental and operational costs.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBzwmAL R D

Because of the keen competition in the marketplace, the
wholesale business recorded a decrease in the turnover
during the year. At present, we are the exclusive footwear
distributor of the US brands of Caterpillar, Merrell, Royal
Elastics and Sebago in Hong Kong, Macau and the
Mainland China, and the Italian brand of Geox in Hong
Kong and Macau as well as the exclusive footwear, bags
and apparel distributor of the UK brand of Gola in Hong
Kong, Macau and the Mainland China.

Compared with last year, the turnover increased by 0.84%
to HK$603,380,000 whereas the operating profit decreased
by 17.35% to HK$30,099,000 in the Hong Kong and
Macau market. At the end of May 2007, the Group
operated 107 retail outlets in Hong Kong and Macau under
the brands of Mirabell, Joy & Peace, Fiorucci, Inshoesnet
and Geox.

The Mainland China market

During the year, the business of the Group benefited from
the Mainland China’s continued growing economy. The
management widened the product range by introducing
new international brands in order to progressively increase
the coverage of the footwear market. For the purposes of
enhancing overall performance, the Group ceased the
operations of some non-performing retail outlets and
opened more counters at prime department stores and
shopping malls where turnover rent shall be paid. At the
same time, the management maintained a very tight cost
control in order to increase the operating profit. In addition,
the Group has begun a significant upgrading the
management information systems and IT infrastructure so
as to increase our business process capability, and inventory
and sales management since March 2007.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBzwmAL R D

During the year, the Group achieved growth in the turnover
and operating profit in the Mainland China market.
Compared with last year, the turnover increased by 19.56%
to HK$306,144,000 whereas the operating profit increased
by 61.82% to HK$37,593,000. At the end of May 2007,
the Group operated 192 retail outlets in Shenzhen,
Guangzhou, Shanghai, Beijing, Tianjin, Dalian, Chengdu,
Chongqging, Zhuhai, Xi‘an, Wuhan, Wuxi, Dongguan,
Harbin, Shijiazhuang, Panyu, Shenyang, Huizhou, Foshan,
Hangzhou and Nanjing under the brands of Mirabell, Joy
& Peace, Innet, Caterpillar, Merrell, Fiorucci and Kokopelli.
In addition, there were 108 franchised retail outlets under
the brand of Joy & Peace.

The Taiwan market

During the year, market conditions were extremely tough
and worsened by the weak consumer sentiment. The
economy had been continuing to be sluggish. The turnover
increased by 108.50% to HK$24,701,000 whereas the
operating loss increased by 30.37% to HK$6,718,000,
compared with last year. As the outlook for the market
remained uncertain during the year, the management
focused on brand awareness, product development, store
performance improvement as well as cost control. At the
end of May 2007, the Group operated 16 retail outlets
under the brand of Fiorucci in Taiwan.

Associate of the Group

Best Quality Investments Limited (“Best Quality”), a
company incorporated in Samoa, is the Group’s associate
in which the Group holds 30% interests. The Company
was informed that on 1 September 2006, Belle
International Holdings Limited (“Belle International”) issued
new shares to a company owned by Mr Tang Yiu, who is
a cousin of Mr Tang Wai Lam, a director of the Company,
as consideration for acquisition of another company owned
by Mr Tang Yiu which carries on the business of retailing
of sportswear in the PRC. Moreover, the Company was
also informed that such acquisition and issue of new shares
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBzwmAL R D

were the result of commercial negotiations between Belle
International and Mr Tang Yiu by reference to the valuation
of Belle International and the company being acquired
respectively as at 30 June 2006. Best Quality’s equity
interest in Belle International was diluted from
approximately 20.3% to approximately 17.7%.
Accordingly, the Company’s attributable interest in Belle
International was diluted to approximately 5.3%. As Belle
International has ceased to be accounted for as an
associate in the consolidated financial statements of Best
Quality, the consolidated profits or losses of Belle
International have ceased to be equity accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements of Best Quality.

As a result of the listing of Belle International on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on
23 May 2007 and the over-allotment option in respect of
Belle International’s global offering being exercised in full
on 28 May 2007, the Company’s attributable interest in
Belle International was further diluted to approximately
4.4%.

OUTLOOK

The management is of the view that the continuing
decrease in the unemployment rate together with the
booming stock market should further stimulate consumer
spending in the local market. On the contrary, the
management is concerned about the impact from increases
in rental and operational costs. As opportunities arise from
the continuous arrival of the Mainland tourists and the
improvement in the local economy, the Group is confident
the business in Hong Kong and Macau.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBzwmAL R D

The Group has laid down solid foundations in the Mainland
China market, including but not limited to the expansion
of the product range and the strengthening of our
operational management, for the next stage of business
growth. Leveraging on our competitive advantage, the
management aims at driving further business expansion in
the Mainland China market. The Group plans to increase
the geographical coverage and the market share by
opening more retail outlets particularly in the first and
second tier cities of the Mainland China.

For the Taiwan market, the Group will be cautious to
review the operating strategies from time to time to
encounter the rapidly changing economic conditions. In
the future, the Group will focus on strengthening brand
management and marketing as well as closely monitoring
cost control in order to improve the overall performance.

Looking ahead, the management is fully committed to
growing business in the Greater China region. The Group
will continue to reinforce brand development, pursue
continuous product quality improvement and customer
service excellence as well as enhance operational
effectiveness and efficiency. Having accumulated several
years of experience in the Mainland China, the Group is
well-positioned to consolidate its foothold and further
speeds up the pace of business development there as a
major drive of growth. All in all, the management is
optimistic about the business in the future.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Working capital of the Group increased from
HK$214,047,000 to HK$271,814,000, and the current ratio

and quick ratio remained at a steady level of 2.79 and
1.59 times, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBzwmAL R D

The inventory balance as at 28 February 2007 amounted
to HK$182,052,000. Compared with the inventory balance
of HK$154,148,000 as at 28 February 2006, an increase
was recorded. As at 28 February 2007, the Group had
bank balances and cash of HK$108,246,000 and
outstanding bank borrowings of HK$25,008,000. During
the year, the Group raised new short-term bank loans of
HK$70,279,000 for the financing of working capital and
short-term bank loans of HK$94,846,000 were settled.

As at 28 February 2007, the gearing ratio of the Group
was 0.02 (2006: 0.11) which was calculated on the Group’s
total borrowings of HK$25,008,000 (2006:
HK$47,817,000) and the total equity of HK$1,284,327,000
(2006: HK$438,063,000).

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group continued to adopt a conservative approach to
financial risk management. The Group’s borrowings were
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi and were arranged
on a floating rate basis. As at 28 February 2007, the
Group did not employ any financial instrument. The Group’s
treasury management policy is not to engage in any highly
leveraged or speculative derivative products. With low
gearing position, the
management believes that the Group is well placed to
avail itself to future expansion and
opportunities.

ratio and sound financial

investment

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 28 February 2007, the net book values of land and
buildings pledged as security for certain banking facilities
available to the Group amounted to approximately
HK$10,396,000 (2006: HK$10,856,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBzwmAL R D

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 28 February 2007, the Group did not have any
contingent liabilities (2006: HK$31,330,000 in respect of
guarantees issued for general banking facilities, of which
HK$10,636,000 were utilised, granted to third parties).

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 28 February 2007, the Group had a total of 1,916
employees. The Group offers a competitive remuneration
package to its employees, including insurance and medical
benefits. In addition, discretionary bonus and share options
may be granted to eligible employees based on the Group’s
performance and individual performance.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
BERBFAXEES

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting
of the Company will be held at The Royal Pacific Hotel
and Towers, 33 Canton Road, China Hong Kong City, Tsim
Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong on Friday, 27 July 2007 at
10:30 a.m. for the following purposes:

1. to consider and adopt the audited financial statements
for the year ended 28 February 2007 and the reports
of the directors and of the independent auditor;

2. (A) to re-elect the retiring director, Mr Tang Wai Lam
as a director;

(B) to re-elect the retiring director, Mr Leung Kelvin
Yiu Fai as a director;

(C) to re-elect the retiring director, Mr Lee Kwan Hung
as a director,

(D) to re-elect the retiring director, Mr Chan Ka Sing,
Tommy as a director;

(E) to authorise the board of directors to fix the
directors’ remuneration;

3. to re-appoint auditor and to authorise the board of
directors to fix its remuneration;

4. to consider as special business and, if thought fit,
pass with or without amendments, the following
resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS
(A) "THAT:

(a) subject to sub-paragraph (c) hereof, the
exercise by the directors during the Relevant
Period (as defined in sub-paragraph (d)
hereof) of all powers of the Company to allot,
issue and deal with the shares of the
Company (“Shares”) and to make or grant
offers, agreements and options which would
or might require Shares to be allotted be and
is hereby generally and unconditionally
approved,;
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(b)

/#/IRABELL

the approval mentioned in sub-paragraph (a)
hereof shall authorise the directors during the
Relevant Period to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which would or
might require Shares to be allotted after the
end of the Relevant Period,

the aggregate nominal amount of share
capital allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted (whether
pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the
directors pursuant to the approval mentioned
in sub-paragraph (a) hereof, otherwise than
pursuant to Shares issued as a result of a
Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined) or
pursuant to the exercise of options under the
Share Option Scheme adopted by the
Company on 29 December 2004 or similar
arrangement or any scrip dividend or similar
arrangement providing for the allotment of
Shares in lieu of the whole or part of the
dividend on Shares in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company, shall
not exceed 20 per cent. of the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company in issue as the date of passing of
this Resolution and the said approval shall be
limited accordingly; and

for the purpose of this Resolution:
“Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this Resolution until whichever is

the earliest of:

(aa) the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company;

(b)
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(bb) the expiration of the period within which
the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by the Articles of
Association of the Company or any
applicable laws of the Cayman Islands to
be held; and

(cc) the passing of an ordinary resolution of
the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting revoking or varying the
authority given under this mandate.

“Rights Issue” means an offer of Shares open
for a period fixed by the directors to holders
of Shares on the register on a fixed record
date in proportion to their then holdings of
such Shares (subject to such exclusions or
other arrangements as the directors may
deem necessary or expedient in relation to
fractional entitlements or legal or practical
problems under the laws of, or the
requirements of any recognised regulatory
body or any stock exchange in, any territory).”

“THAT:

(a) subject to sub-paragraph (b) hereof, the

exercise by the directors of the Company
during the Relevant Period (as defined in sub-
paragraph (A)(d) above) of all the powers of
the Company to purchase Shares on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited or on any
other stock exchange on which the securities
of the Company may be listed and recognised
by the Securities and Futures Commission and
the Stock Exchange for this purpose, subject
to and in accordance with all applicable laws
and/or requirements of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) or of any other stock exchange on
which the securities of the Company may be
listed as amended from time to time, be and
is hereby generally and unconditionally
approved; and
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(b) the aggregate nominal amount of Shares to
be purchased by the Company pursuant to
the approval mentioned in sub-paragraph (a)
hereof shall not exceed 10 per cent. of the
aggregate nominal amount of the share
capital of the Company in issue as at the
date of passing of this Resolution and the
said approval shall be limited accordingly.”

(C) "THAT:

conditional under Resolutions under sub-
paragraphs (A) and (B) above being passed, the
general unconditional mandate as mentioned in
sub-paragraph (A) above shall be extended by the
addition to the aggregate nominal amount of the
share capital of the Company which may be
allotted or agreed to be allotted by the directors
pursuant to such general unconditional mandate
of any amount representing the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital repurchased
by the Company pursuant to the general
unconditional mandate referred to in sub-
paragraph (B) above, provided that such extended
amount shall not exceed 10 per cent. of the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital
of the Company in issue as at the date of passing
of this Resolution.”; and

5. to consider as special business and, if thought fit,
pass with or without amendments, the following
resolution as Ordinary Resolutions:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS
(A) "THAT:
subject to and conditional upon the Listing
Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited granting the listing of, and permission to
deal in, the shares in the share capital of the
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Company (the “Shares”) to be issued pursuant to
the exercise of the share options which may be
granted under the Company’s share option scheme
adopted on 29 December 2004, the refreshment
of the limit on the total number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under such share option scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
(excluding those previously granted, outstanding,
cancelled, lapsed in accordance with such share
option scheme or any other share option scheme
or exercised) to 10 per cent. of the total number
of Shares in issue as at the date of passing of this
resolution (the “New Scheme Limit”) be and is
hereby approved and any director of the
Company, or any two directors of the Company
if affixation of the common seal of the Company
is necessary, be and is/are hereby authorised to
do such acts and execute all such documents to
effect the New Scheme Limit and to exercise all
powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal
with the Shares to be issued pursuant to the
exercise of such share options.”

“THAT:

(a) conditional upon receipt of 375,000,000
shares in the share capital of Belle
International Holdings Limited (“Belle Shares”)
by the subsidiaries of the Company from Best
Quality Investments Limited and the receipt
of the same by the Company from its
subsidiaries, the distribution in specie of 71
Belle Shares for every 50 shares in the share
capital of the Company (the “Shares”) in each
holding of Shares of the holders of Shares
whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company as holding Shares
on 27 July 2007 (or such other date as may
be determined by the board of directors of
the Company) on the terms and conditions
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(including but not limited to those in relation
to payment of cash in lieu (in whole or in
part) in the relevant circumstances) described
in the circular of the Company dated 28 June
2007 (a copy of which has been produced to
this meeting and marked “A" and signed by
the chairman of the meeting for the purpose
of identification) be and is hereby approved;
and

(b) the directors of the Company be and are
hereby authorised generally to take all steps
and do all acts and things, and to approve,
sign and execute all documents, which in their
opinion may be necessary, desirable,
appropriate or expedient to implement or give
effect to the foregoing or any matters
incidental thereto.”

By Order of the Board
Leung Kelvin Yiu Fai
Executive Director and Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 28 June 2007
Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting
convened by the above notice is entitled to appoint one or
more proxies to attend and vote on his behalf. A proxy
needs not be a member of the Company.

2. To be valid, a form of proxy and the power of attorney or
other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a
notarially certified copy of such authority, must be deposited
with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Abacus Share Registrars Limited at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not less than 48
hours before the time appointed for holding of the meeting
or adjourned meeting thereof.
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The Register of Members of the Company will be closed
from 24 July 2007 to 27 July 2007, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected.
In order to qualify for the distribution in specie, all transfers
of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar, Abacus Share Registrars Limited at 26/F,
Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
no later than 4:00 p.m. on 23 July 2007.

At an Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 28
July 2006, Ordinary Resolutions were passed giving general
mandates to directors to repurchase shares of the Company
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and to allot,
issue and otherwise deal with additional shares in the capital
of the Company. Under the Listing Rules, these general
mandates lapse at the conclusion of the Annual General
Meeting for the year of 2006/2007, unless renewed at that
meeting. The Ordinary Resolutions sought in items 4(A) and
4(B) of this Notice renew these mandates.

With reference to the Ordinary Resolutions sought in items
4(A) and 4(B) of this Notice, the directors wish to state that
they have no immediate plans to repurchase any existing
shares or to issue any new shares of the Company. Approval
is being sought from members as a general mandate
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

As at the date of this Notice, the Company’s executive
directors are Mr Tang Wai Lam, Mr Ng Man Kit, Lawrence,
Mr Chung Chun Wah and Mr Leung Kelvin Yiu Fai;
independent non-executive directors are Mr Lee Kin Sang,
Mr Chan Ka Sing, Tommy and Mr Ng Chun Chuen, David;
non-executive director is Mr Lee Kwan Hung.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 28 February 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in retailing, wholesaling
and manufacturing of footwear. There were no changes
in the Group's activities during the year.

The Group has only one single business segment which is
the sales of footwear through retailing, wholesaling and
manufacturing. Accordingly, the segment information for
this sole business segment is equivalent to the consolidated
figures. A geographical analysis of the Group’s performance
for the year is set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 59.

The board of directors declared on 21 November 2006 an
interim dividend of HK1.5 cents per ordinary share, totalling
HK$3,817,950 and the interim dividend was paid on 18
December 2006.

The board of directors has resolved not to recommend a
final dividend.

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company

during the year are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 28 February 2007, the distributable reserves of the
Company available for distribution amounted to
HK$124,317,000 (2006: HK$125,301,000, net of dividends
proposed) as computed in accordance with the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands.

FIXED ASSETS

The Company did not own any fixed assets during the
year.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
and particulars of investment properties of the Group are
set out in notes 14 and 15, respectively to the financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at
28 February 2007 are set out on pages 137 to 141.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group has set up, in accordance with the laws of the
regions where the Group operates, defined contribution
retirement schemes, which are available to all eligible
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the Group
and, if applicable, the employees are calculated as a
percentage of the employees’ salaries. The retirement
benefit schemes cost charged to the income statement
represents contributions payable by the Group to these
schemes.

Contributions totalling approximately HK$743,000 (2006:
HK$821,000) were payable to these schemes at the year
end and are included in accrued charges. The assets of
these schemes are held separately from those of the Group
in independently administered funds.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association of the Company and there are no
restrictions against such rights under the laws of the
Cayman Islands.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the latest five financial years is set out
on page 143.

DIRECTORS
The directors during the year were:
Executive directors

Mr Tang Wai Lam

Mr Ng Man Kit, Lawrence
Mr Chung Chun Wah

Mr Leung Kelvin Yiu Fai (appointed on

1 August 2006)
Non-executive directors

Mr Lee Kwan Hung

Mr Lee Kin Sang*

Mr Chan Ka Sing, Tommy*
Mr Ng Chun Chuen, David*

* Independent non-executive directors

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr Tang Wai Lam, Mr Leung Kelvin Yiu Fai, Mr
Lee Kwan Hung and Mr Chan Ka Sing, Tommy will retire
from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), and still
considers all of the independent non-executive directors
to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of directors and senior
management are set out as follows:

Executive directors

Mr Tang Wai Lam, aged 53, is one of the two co-founders
of the Group and the Chairman and Managing Director of
the Company. Appointed as a director of the Company in
1996, Mr Tang has over 33 years of experience in the
footwear retailing business and has established strong and
extensive connections with footwear suppliers in Europe,
USA, Hong Kong and Mainland China. He is primarily
responsible for the overall direction of the business and
formulation of corporate policies of the Group. Mr Tang
serves as the Permanent Honorary Chairman of The
Federation of Hong Kong Footwear Limited.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Executive directors (continued)

Mr Ng Man Kit, Lawrence, aged 51, is the Deputy
Managing Director of the Company. Mr Ng is responsible
for the overall strategic planning, retail operation as well
as business development of the Group. Before re-joining
the board in 2002, he was an executive director of two
listed fashion groups and the vice president of a listed
trading company in Hong Kong. Mr Ng holds a distinction
Diploma in History from the Hong Kong Baptist University
and has over 25 years of experience in the retail services
industry in Hong Kong.

Mr Chung Chun Wah, aged 57, was appointed as a
director of the Company in 1996. He joined the Group in
1990 and is responsible for the merchandising
management and product development of the Group. He
has over 31 years of experience in the footwear business.

Mr Leung Kelvin Yiu Fai, aged 40, was appointed as a
director of the Company on 1 August 2006 and is
concurrently serving as the Qualified Accountant and
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr Leung joined the
Group as the Financial Controller and Company Secretary
of the Company in 2002. He holds a Master degree in
Finance and Commercial Law from the University of Sydney,
Australia, a Master degree in Business Administration from
Monash University, Australia and a Bachelor degree in Law
from University of Wolverhampton, UK. Besides, he is a
Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a Fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, UK, a Certified Management
Accountant of the Institute of Certified Management
Accountants, USA, a Certified Practising Accountant of
CPA Australia and a Solicitor of the High Court of Australia.
Mr Leung has over 16 years of experience in accounting,
finance, taxation, company and commercial law.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRSE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Non-executive directors

Mr Lee Kwan Hung, aged 41, was appointed as a non-
executive director of the Company in 2000. Mr Lee
graduated from the University of Hong Kong in 1988 and
obtained a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws in 1989. He
was qualified as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1991 and in
England and Wales in 1997. He was a senior manager of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and is a partner
of Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo and the chief representative of
Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo’s Beijing Office.

Mr Lee Kin Sang, aged 54, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company and joined the board
in 1996. He has been involved in the jewellery industry
for over 31 years and has substantial experience in
manufacturing and trading of jewellery. He is a director
of several private companies engaged in jewellery
manufacturing and trading. Mr Lee presently serves as a
director of Hong Kong Jewellery Manufacturers’
Association, the Committee Member of Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference (Panyu, Guangzhou) and
the chairman of Guangzhou Panyu Jewellers Manufacturing
Association.

Mr Chan Ka Sing, Tommy, aged 46, is an independent
non-executive director of the Company and joined the
board in 1996. Mr Chan is a practising solicitor admitted
by the Supreme Court of Hong Kong and the Supreme
Court of England and Wales. He is currently a consultant
of the solicitors’ firm Jimmie K S Wong & Partners. Mr
Chan has extensive experience in law practising and
accountancy. He holds a Bachelor degree in Law from
Wolverhampton Polytechnic, England and a Diploma of
accountancy from Hong Kong Polytechnic. Mr Chan has
worked in the legal profession for more than 15 years and
held accounting positions in an international accounting
firm and an international trading company.
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EEEHRSE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Non-executive directors (continued)

Mr Ng Chun Chuen, David, aged 42, is an independent
non-executive director of the Company and joined the
board in 2004. Mr Ng is a Fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a Fellow of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, UK.
Mr Ng has extensive experience in auditing, financial
management, corporate development, investment and
corporate finance. He had been an executive director and
chief financial officer of various companies listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The executive directors of the Company are also senior
management of the Group and hold directorships in certain
subsidiaries.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRSE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 28 February 2007, the interests and short positions
of the directors of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, were as follows:

(a) Shares in the Company

EERRO -HEROREER &
wRAR

RZZEZLF A+ NB RE(ESH
K HEAE 15 01) 335218 R E AR E 2 BRD
T P & A 8% SR ¥ L T AR BI) B 8% + P
HEMCESFETRESFXZNEESTAD
ARMEARARARBBBMARSMAERR
Al (TBRF]) ARAEFTEARAR
HAZEE (ERXR(EF BB EL)
EXVER) BBy - MBI (0 M EHERE 2 1E
S MORBR T :

(a) A2AZKRH

Number of shares/

underlying shares beneficially held

BEXBARG HBEROHE
Other
Personal interests interests Total
Name of Director EEns B AR Hin e Mt
Ordinary
shares of  Underlying
HK$0.1 each shares
FR01EBTZ
B R R 5 B R 5
(note (i)
(KaEa)
Mr Tang Wai Lam WEMNEE 6,000,000 - 130,575,000 136,575,000
(note (ii))
(K &2 ii))
Mr Ng Man Kit, Lawrence ~ RRELE 12,094,000 2,000,000 —- 14,094,000
Mr Chung Chun Wah ERELE 1,734,000 2,000,000 - 3,734,000
Mr Leung Kelvin Yiu Fai RBELE - 1,300,000 - 1,300,000
Mr Lee Kwan Hung THWEE - 500,000 - 500,000
Mr Lee Kin Sang TERELE - 500,000 - 500,000
Mr Chan Ka Sing, Tommy BREBLE - 500,000 - 500,000
Mr Ng Chun Chuen, David RIER L% - 250,000 - 250,000
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EEEHRSE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(continued)

Notes:

(i) Underlying shares are shares options granted to the
directors of the Company pursuant to the share option
scheme of the Company and details of which are set
out on pages 33 to 39.

(ii) Of these 130,575,000 shares, 8,175,000 shares were
held by Rich Land Property Limited, which was wholly
owned by a discretionary trust, the founder of which
was Mr Tang Wai Lam. The other 122,400,000 shares
were held by Tang's Enterprises Limited, which was
owned by Rich Land Property Limited, Kinlington Agents
Limited and Mosman Associates Limited as to one-
third each.

(b) Shares in Mirabell Footwear Limited

Name of Director EEpnE
Mr Tang Wai Lam BEMEE
Mr Chung Chun Wah B R E kA&

29| Z/RABELL

EERRO -HEROREER &
wERAE (@)

Wt it -

MR TR AR R B 2 BEKEE &
RTESRRE AREFBINE
33F39H-

itk % 130,575,000/% A% 3 A -
8,175,000t i —H = EFER
& BT # A My Rich Land Property
LimitedPis B B EMEERZE
REERERIBCIL A » H $2122,400,000
fi% % 7 A Tang's Enterprises Limited
Fr# & > M Rich Land Property
Limited * Kinlington Agents Limited
¥ Mosman Associates Limited &
BH=H—2zk#-

(b) XEEEXERAAZRMD

Number of non-voting deferred shares
of HK$100 each in a subsidiary of the
Company, Mirabell Footwear Limited,

beneficially held personally
BAEBEZBFELLQAMNERQA

XEHEXARLQAFTSTRI00E T

RERREELZREA
6,561
477
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F THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(continued)

Save as disclosed above:

(i)

(i)

As at 28 February 2007, none of the directors or
chief executives (including their spouses and
children under 18 years of age) of the Company
had any interest in, or had been granted, or
exercised, any rights to subscribe for the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of the SFO).

At no time during the year was the Company or
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

EERRO -HEROREER &
wERAE (@)

B EXREBEESN:

(i)

(i)

RZEZEEF_HA-_+\H &
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 28 February 2007, the following persons (other than
the directors of the Company) had 5% or more interests
and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

FERR

RoFTLF-A-+/\B REGES
BRHIEER) F336ERTAREZ R
MArBRS U TAL (RARFAZES
98) $5 A D F) 0 AR 1D R AB BB IRAD 2 5%
S b 2 A ROAR

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each beneficially held

=
=B

Beneficial

interests

Name HH BEinEn

Tang's Enterprises Limited Tang's Enterprises Limited 122,400,000
(note (v)) (K&t ()

Rich Land Property Limited Rich Land Property Limited 8,175,000
(note (v)) (K&t ()

Kinlington Agents Limited Kinlington Agents Limited 8,175,000
(note (v)) (Kt ()

Mosman Associates Limited ~ Mosman Associates Limited 8,175,000

Mr Tang Keung Lam o k4 6,000,000

Madam Tso Lai Kuen )3 6,000,000

Strath Fiduciaries Limited

/#/IRABELL

Strath Fiduciaries Limited

BEESROIBRIZEBROHE
Interest of
controlled Other
corporation interests Total
2
DAL Hit s &t
- - 122,400,000
122,400,000 - 130,575,000
(note (i)
(Hiat()
122,400,000 - 130,575,000
(note (i)
(K1)
122,400,000 - 130,575,000
(note (i)
(Hiat()
- 130,575,000 136,575,000
(note (ii))
(Ht (i)
- 130,575,000 136,575,000
(note (iii))
(Bt & (iii))
155,100,000 - 155,100,000
(note (iv)
(K& (iv)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

These represented the same block of 122,400,000 shares
held by Tang's Enterprises Limited, which was owned by
Rich Land Property Limited, Kinlington Agents Limited and
Mosman Associates Limited as to one-third each.

Of these 130,575,000 shares, 8,175,000 shares were held
by Kinlington Agents Limited, which was wholly owned by
a discretionary trust, the founder of which was Mr Tang
Keung Lam. The other 122,400,000 shares represented the
same block of shares held by Tang's Enterprises Limited.

Of these 130,575,000 shares, 8,175,000 shares were held
by Mosman Associates Limited, which was wholly owned
by a discretionary trust, the founder of which was Madam
Tso Lai Kuen. The other 122,400,000 shares represented
the same block of shares held by Tang’s Enterprises Limited.

These represented the same block of 122,400,000 shares
held by Tang’s Enterprises Limited and the three blocks of
shares of 8,175,000 each beneficially held by Rich Land
Property Limited, Kinlington Agents Limited and Mosman
Associates Limited respectively plus 8,175,000 shares
beneficially held by Simple Message Limited. Since Rich Land
Property Limited, Kinlington Agents Limited, Mosman
Associates Limited and Simple Message Limited were wholly
owned on trust by Strath Fiduciaries Limited, Strath
Fiduciaries Limited was deemed to be interested in the shares
in which those companies were interested or deemed to be
interested under the SFO.

Mr Tang Wai Lam is a director of Tang's Enterprises Limited,
Rich Land Property Limited and Kinlington Agents Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 28 February 2007, no other
person was recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO as having
5% or more interests and short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company.

FERR (#)

Pt ot

(i) UZHRE{H B Tang's Enterprises LimitedFfr
#F A 89122,400,0000% i fp B[R — 5=
Rich Land Property Limited * Kinlington
Agents Limited} Mosman Associates
Limited& A H =0 — 2t -

(i) 1£%5130,575,0008% B 1 # - 8,175,000/%
B —EHE2REEZ2EMERN
Kinlington Agents Limited 134 - 2558 #K
EFHERZERETENKIAHEH
122,400,0000% f% 17 B2 Tang’s Enterprises
LimitedFF AR RMD BRI —R°

(i) 11k 130,575,0008% B {5 - 8,175,0000%
BB —EBE2HEEEZEMEAN
Mosman Associates LimitedfiiF B E B
BLTAZEEETOKRIT AL
122,400,0000% J% 17 B2 Tang's Enterprises
Limited T BRI 0D BRE —FRe

(iv) It % B& 15 8 & A Tang's Enterprises
Limited#5 & i [F & — R 2 122,400,000/%
i% 17 : 5 Bl E Rich Land Property Limited -
Kinlington Agents Limited 5 Mosman
Associates LimitedE BB = A
8,175,0000% 2 = R 17 : LA K & Simple
Message Limited Bz #54 2 8,175,0000%
A% 15 - B B Rich Land Property Limited *
Kinlington Agents Limited * Mosman
Associates Limited K& Simple Message
Limited | Strath Fiduciaries Limited A {5
AEA2ERE WBRB(EFLHAER
By - Strath Fiduciaries Limited# % /&
B ERD 2w Mt FR G 2 B
ZENTBEBEIERAES-

(v) BMEML L ATang's Enterprises Limited

Rich Land Property Limited & Kinlington
Agents LimitedZ £ & -

BEXBEEN R-BEEF-A=+
NNE AR FRECES R E ) B
336432 B ML MR A 55
AR 2R RABRIRR (3 2 5% b b
AR BAR
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The purpose of the share option scheme of the Company
(the “Share Option Scheme”) is to provide the Company
with a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to
the participants for their contributions and/or potential
contributions to the Group and for such other purposes
as the Board may approve from time to time.

The participants of the Share Option Scheme are:

(i) any executive or non-executive directors including
independent non-executive directors or any employees
(whether full-time or part-time) of the Group;

(i) any discretionary objects of a discretionary trust
established by any employees, executive or non-
executive directors of the Group;

(iii) any consultants, professional and other advisers to
the Group (or persons, firms or companies proposed
to be appointed for providing such services);

(iv) any chief executives of the Company; and

(v) any associates of director or chief executive of the
Company,

provided that the Board may have absolute discretion to
determine whether or not one falls within the above
categories.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The total number of shares of the Company (“Shares”)
which may be issued upon exercise of all options under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company (excluding, for this purpose,
options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes) must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of Shares in issue at 29
December 2004, the date of adoption of the Share Option
Scheme, unless a fresh approval of the shareholders is
obtained. As at the date of this annual report, the total
number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme is 1,083,000, which represents
approximately 0.4% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number
of Shares in issue. Any further grant of options in excess
of such limit must be separately approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting with such
participant and his associates abstaining from voting.

The Board shall be entitled at any time within 10 years
after 29 December 2004 to make an offer of the grant of
an option. The period during which an option may be
exercised is determined by the Board, which shall not be
longer than 10 years from the date upon which the option
is granted unless otherwise determined by the Board and
specified in the offer letter at the time of the offer of the
grant of the option, there is no minimum period for which
an option must be held before it can be exercised.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The amount payable on acceptance of the option is
HK$1.00 to be received by the Company within a period
of 28 days from the date upon which the offer is made,
provided that no such offer shall be open for acceptance
after the 10th anniversary from 29 December 2004. Such
remittance shall in no circumstances be refundable. The
full amount of the exercise price for the subscription of
Shares has to be paid upon exercise of an option.

The subscription price in respect of each Share issued
pursuant to the exercise of options granted shall be a
price solely determined by the Board and notified to a
participant and shall be at least the highest of:

(@) the closing price of Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date,
which must be a business day;

(b) a price being the average of the closing prices of
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheets for the 5 business days immediately
preceding the offer date; and

(c) the nominal value of a Share.
The Share Option Scheme was approved by the
shareholders of the Company on 29 December 2004 and

has a life of 10 years until 28 December 2014, but any
options then outstanding will continue to be exercisable.
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EEEg®RE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) RIREE (3

On 3 April 2006, share options were granted to certain RZEERNFNA=ZH AEEETES
directors and employees of the Group pursuant to the NKEEBRBARKRET S BX TRK
Share Option Scheme. As at 28 February 2007, share -R-_ZETZLF_A-_+T AR BHTT
options with rights to subscribe for a total of 20,280,000 {4 $£20,280,0000% f% 15 #) 3R A% # 14 &
Shares at a subscription price of HK$2.875 per share TE-BRRBREZITEERTAR2.875
subject to vesting periods of one, two, three or four years BT ERRTHR—F MFE =Fz(W
were outstanding. The share options granted shall expire FUER_ZE-——_FHNAZA T —
on 2 April 2012 or 2 April 2014. PUEp A —HEHe

Movements in the share options previously granted are FARERE 2 RREZSHEREHTI AT :
set out below:

Number of underlying Shares

RBRHYA
Cancelled/
Granted Exercised Lapsed
Balance  during the  during the  during the Balance Exercise
asat yearended yearended year ended as at price
1March 28 February 28 February 28 February 28 February per Exercisable
2006 2007 2007 2007 2007 share  Date of grant period
Bz Bz ]
R 2Tt CZBRLE  CFTLE R
Z2%5F ZAZTNR ZAZHAR ZAZTNAR ZERELE
=h-H LEER LEER EEEA ZAZtAR R R
Eligible person aERAL L& R & HE/XX &8 T%E B kid
HKS  (DDIMMIYYYY)  (DDIMMIYYYY)
#r (B/A/%) (B/R/%)
Director Ez
Mr Ng Man Kit, Lawrence  REHELE - 600,000 - - 600,000 2.875 03/04/2006  03/04/2007 -
02/04/2012
- 600,000 - - 600,000 2.875 03/04/2006  03/04/2008 -
02/04/2012
- 800,000 - - 800,000 2.875 03/04/2006  03/04/2009 -
02/04/2012
- 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
Mr Chung Chun Wah ERELE - 600,000 - - 600,000 2.875 03/04/2006  03/04/2007 -
02/04/2012
- 600,000 - - 600,000 2875 03/04/2006  03/04/2008 -
02/04/2012
- 800,000 - - 800,000 2875 03/04/2006  03/04/2009 -
02/04/2012
- 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) AR ETE (&
Number of underlying Shares
RBRHHE
Cancelled/
Granted Exercised Lapsed
Balance  during the  during the  during the Balance Exercise
asat yearended yearended year ended as at price
1March 28 February 28 February 28 February 28 February per Exercisable
2006 2007 2007 2007 2007 share  Date of grant period
Bz Bz Bz
R ZEREE  CRREE CERLE i
Z2%5F ZAZTNR ZAZtAB ZAZtNE  ZEERtE
=A-H LEER LEER LFER ZAZtNR =1 B
Eligible person RERAL 2 i e H¥/&% & e R iR
HKS  (DDIMMIYYYY)  (DDIMMIYYYY)
#r (B/R/%) (B/R/%)
Mr Leung Kelvin Yiu Fai ~ 22E%L A - 320,000 - - 320,000 2.875 03/04/2006  03/04/2007 -
02/04/2014
- 320,000 - - 320,000 2.875 03/04/2006  03/04/2008 -
02/04/2014
- 320,000 - - 320,000 2.875 03/04/2006  03/04/2009 -
02/04/2014
- 340,000 - - 340,000 2.875 03/04/2006  03/04/2010 -
02/04/2014
- 1,300,000 - - 1,300,000
Mr Lee Kwan Hung TR E - 160,000 - - 160,000 2.875 03/04/2006  03/04/2007 -
02/04/2014
- 160,000 - - 160,000 2.875 03/04/2006  03/04/2008 -
02/04/2014
- 180,000 - - 180,000 2.875 03/04/2006  03/04/2009 -
02/04/2014
- 500,000 - - 500,000
Mr Lee Kin Sang TRERE - 160,000 - - 160,000 2.875 03/04/2006  03/04/2007 -
02/04/2014
- 160,000 - - 160,000 2.875 03/04/2006  03/04/2008 -
02/04/2014
- 180,000 - - 180,000 2.875 03/04/2006  03/04/2009 -
02/04/2014
- 500,000 - - 500,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) AR ETE (&
Number of underlying Shares
RERGHR
Cancelled/
Granted Exercised Lapsed
Balance  during the  during the  during the Balance Exercise
asat yearended yearended year ended as at price
1March 28 February 28 February 28 February 28 February per Exercisable
2006 2007 2007 2007 2007 share  Date of grant period
BE BE BE
R -BFtf C-BRLE C-BRLE R
ZERXE ZACHNE ZAZHNB ZAZTAR ZBRLE
ZR-B LF¥ER LFER LEER ZAZTNE R R
Eligible person RERAL &8 B T H#/ X% i k@ A ks
HKS  (DDIMMIYYYY)  (DDIMMIYYYY)
#r (B/R/%) (B/R/%)
Mr Chan Ka Sing, Tommy  RZE LA - 160,000 - - 160,000 2.875 03/04/2006  03/04/2007 -
02/04/2014
- 160,000 - - 160,000 2.875 03/04/2006  03/04/2008 -
02/04/2014
- 180,000 - - 180,000 2.875 03/04/2006  03/04/2009 -
02/0412014
- 500,000 - - 500,000
Mr Ng Chun Chuen, David REE %4 - 80,000 - - 80,000 2.875 03/04/2006  03/04/2007 -
02/04/2014
- 80,000 - - 80,000 2.875 03/04/2006  03/04/2008 -
02/04/2014
- 90,000 - - 90,000 2.875 03/04/2006  03/04/2009 -
02/04/2014
- 250,000 - - 250,000
Employees (note (i)) &8 (Ki() - 4,300,000 - (400,000) 3,900,000 2.875 03/04/2006  03/04/2007 -
02/04/2014
- 4,300,000 - (400,000) 3,900,000 2.875 03/04/2006  03/04/2008 -
02/04/2014
- 4,470,000 - (440,000) 4,030,000 2.875 03/04/2006  03/04/2009 -
02/04/2014
- 1,400,000 - - 1,400,000 2875 03/04/2006  03/04/2010 -
02/04/2014
- 14,470,000 - (1,240,000) 13,230,000
Total CE - 21,520,000 - (1,240,000) 20,280,000
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F THE DIRECTORS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Notes:

Employees working under employment contracts that are
regarded as “continuous contracts” for the purposes of the
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong.

The closing price of the Share immediately before the date
on which the share options were granted was HK$2.875.

The Company adopts the binomial model for estimating
the fair value of share options issued under the Share Option
Scheme. The model is one of the commonly used models
to estimate the fair value of a share option which can be
exercised before the expiry of the option period.

Significant assumptions are used in the binomial model to
estimate the value of a share option, taking into account
the following factors:

e Risk-free interest rate — the yields of Hong Kong
Exchange Fund Notes

e  Expected volatility — the historical volatility of the Share
during the 5 years immediately before the date on
which the share options were granted, and the
expected volatility for the retail industry

e  Expected dividend yields — the historical dividend yields
of the Company

The value of a share option varies with different variables
of certain subjective assumptions. Any change in variables
so adopted may materially affect the estimation of the fair
value of a share option.

The total value of the share options granted on 3 April
2006 was approximately HK$17,286,000 according to the
binomial model, and is expensed over the respective vesting
periods.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRSE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions entered by the Group during
the year ended 28 February 2007 included compensation
paid to key management. These transactions do not
constitute connected transactions under the Listing Rules
and are disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate percentages of purchases and sales for the
year attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers and
five largest customers, respectively, are less than 30% of
the total purchases and sales for the year, respectively.
Therefore no disclosure with regard to major suppliers
and customers is made.

DEALINGS IN THE COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

The Company did not redeem any of the Company'’s shares
during the year. Neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased or sold any of the Company’s
share during the year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing
Rules, based on information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of the directors.

BEXS
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRSE
AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retires and, being eligible,
offer itself for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Tang Wai Lam
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 June 2007
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBRRE

The Company is committed to building and maintaining
high standards of corporate governance. The Company
has complied with the code provisions set out in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
(the "Listing Rules”), with certain deviations as mentioned
below, throughout the year.

A. DIRECTORS
A.1 The Board
9 board meetings were held during the year.

Individual attendance of the Directors, during the
respective terms of their directorships, is set out

RRBBNBRYREFSKENEEE
B ARARBEFEAN-—BHET(ER
BMEXSGMARABES EHALD
(TKEMRAY ) M+ B (R EE
AW ST R R 2T AR B RE
THEAE TIREE

A ES
A1ESES

EXSEAFEHRAKERT

N A
RS-

REFHEHERNNLEXRNT:

below:
Number of
meetings attended
Name ®E HEGBERY
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr Tang Wai Lam HEMRLE
(Chairman & Managing Director) (FEREFLKE) 9/9
Mr Ng Man Kit, Lawrence REGRE
(Deputy Managing Director) (EFFHKE) 719
Mr Chung Chun Wah BIRELAE 8/9
Mr Leung Kelvin Yiu Fai RIRE K&
(appointed on 1 August 2006) (RZFEXNFNA—HEZHF) 3/3
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFNTES
Mr Lee Kin Sang FrERE 3/9
Mr Chan Ka Sing, Tommy BR&x &%k AE 3/9
Mr Ng Chun Chuen, David RIRR LA 3/9
Non-executive Director FHITEE
Mr Lee Kwan Hung FHERE 2/9
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBRRE

A. DIRECTORS (continued) A. EE (#)

A.1 The Board (continued) A1 EEE (E)

Directors are consulted to include matters in the
agenda for regular board meetings.

Notice of at least 14 days is given of a regular
board meeting to give all Directors an opportunity
to attend. For all other board meetings, reasonable
notice is given.

All Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary with a view to ensuring
that board procedures, and all applicable rules
and regulations, are followed.

Minutes of meetings of the Board, the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee are
kept by the Company Secretary and such minutes
are open for inspection at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice by any Director.

Minutes of meetings of the Board, the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee
record in sufficient detail the matters considered
by the Board and decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views
expressed. Draft and final versions of minutes of
board meetings are sent to all Directors for their
comment and records respectively, in both cases
within a reasonable time after the board meeting
is held.

All Directors may, upon reasonable request, seek
independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense. The
Board shall resolve to provide separate
independent professional advice to Directors to
assist the relevant Director or Directors to
discharge his/their duties to the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBRRE

A. DIRECTORS (continued) A. EE (#)

A.1 The Board (continued) A1 EEE (E)

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a ++EKH§$Y%$E%$A%%
conflict of interest in a matter to be considered EZEMEERGREEEIRA
by the Board which the Board has determined to K B F %5 81 58 EE@%IE}HT\@

be material, the matter shall not be dealt with by
way of circulation or by a committee (except an
appropriate board committee set up for that
purpose pursuant to a resolution passed in a board
meeting) but a board meeting shall be held.
Independent non-executive directors who, and
whose associates, have no material interest in the

NERXHFRERSIZAET
ZE2RE REESggER L
BB A RE MRS L BB L
méﬂaﬁﬂ)ﬁ%$A%ﬁ
REHBTESEEER RS
¢$%&E%%Aﬁaﬁiﬁﬂ
SHBYIERTEEBHEEN

transaction shall be present at such board NEEZEE-
meeting.
A.2 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer A2 TERITHER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. Both roles of the Company are
at present performed by Mr Tang Wai Lam holding
the positions of Chairman and Managing Director.
The Board believes that such appointment has
served and is serving the Group well by providing
unified leadership and direction and allowing
corporate strategies to be developed and
implemented more effectively.

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that all
Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
board meetings, and that they receive adequate
information, which must be complete and reliable,
in a timely manner.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBRRE

A. DIRECTORS (continued)

A.3 Board composition

There is a strong independent element on the
Board, which can exercise independent judgement
and ensure a balance of power and authority.
Throughout the year, independent non-executive
directors represent more than one-third of the
Board and executive directors do not comprise a
majority of the Board.

All Directors are expressly identified by categories
of executive directors, independent non-executive
directors and non-executive director in all
corporate communications that disclose the names
of Directors of the Company.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in
the Report of the Directors.

A.4 Appointments, re-election and removal

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. Code Provision A.4.2
stipulates that all directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy should be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after
their appointment, and that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term,
should be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBRRE

A. DIRECTORS (continued) A. EE (#)

AL ZE-EBNER (H)

A.4 Appointments, re-election and removal

(continued)

Non-executive directors of the Company were not
appointed for a specific term. In accordance with
the Articles of Association of the Company, any
Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then
be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

To ensure stricter compliance with the CG Code,
relevant amendments to the Articles of Association
of the Company were proposed to and approved
by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
held on 28 July 2006 (the "“2006 AGM").
Following shareholders’ resolution passed at the
2006 AGM and the effectiveness of the
amendments to the Articles of Association, save
as the term of appointment of non-executive
directors, the Company fully complies with Code
Provisions A.4.1 and A.4.2.

The appointment of a candidate as a new Director
is considered by the Board to ensure that he has
the character, experience and integrity and is able
to demonstrate a standard of competence
commensurate with his position as a director of
the Company. A newly appointed Director must
be able to meet the standards as set out in Rules
3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. In the case of
an Independent Non-executive Director, he should
also meet the independence criteria set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBRRE

A. DIRECTORS (continued) A. EE (#)

A.5 Responsibilities of directors ASEEEHR

Every newly appointed Director of the Company
shall receive a comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his appointment,
and subsequently such briefing and professional
development as is necessary, to ensure that he
has a proper understanding of the operations and
business of the Company and that he is fully
aware of his responsibilities under statute and
common law, the Listing Rules, applicable legal
requirements and other regulatory requirements
and the business and governance policies of the
Company.

The functions of Non-executive Directors include
those specified in Code Provision A.5.2 (a) to (d)
of the CG Code.

Every Director is aware that he should give
sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions on
terms no less exacting than the required standard
set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Following
a specific enquiry, each of the directors confirmed
that he complied with the code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions
throughout year ended 28 February 2007.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBRRE

A. DIRECTORS (continued) A. EE (#)

A6 BRREHKER

A.6 Supply of and access to information

In respect of regular board meetings, and so far
as practicable in all other cases, an agenda and
accompanying board papers are sent in full to all
Directors in a timely manner and at least 3 days
before the intended date of a board or board
committee meeting.

Management is aware that it has an obligation to
supply the Board and its committees with
adequate, complete and reliable information in a
timely manner to enable it to make informed
decisions. The Board and each Director have
separate and independent access to the senior
management of the Company.

All Directors are entitled to have access to board
papers and related materials.
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B. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR B. EEREREBAENFHFMH
MANAGEMENT
B.1 The level and make-up of remuneration and B.1 HEAREEMNKFERAR
disclosure

Code Provision B.1.1 stipulates that issuers should TFRBIIKEEETARRIE
establish a remuneration committee with specific ﬁﬁﬁﬁi%ﬁ%@l M ME 8
written terms of reference which deal clearly with S FHRREHERBSREHPAZR
its authority and duties. A remuneration BEENEREBE - ZFHMES

committee was formed on 17 October 2005. R _ZEERFTA+TTHEHK
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBRRE

B. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR B. EERSNREBAENTNHN (&)
MANAGEMENT (continued)

B HrEARWMERKFERAK (#)

B.1 The level and make-up of remuneration and

disclosure (continued)

The Remuneration Committee makes
recommendations to the Board on the policy and
structure of the Company for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr Chan Ka Sing, Tommy, Mr
Lee Kin Sang and Mr Ng Chun Chuen, David and
an Executive Director, namely Mr Tang Wai Lam.

4 meetings were held during the year. Individual
attendance of the committee members is set out

FHZE SR ARFEERGR
EEABNZEFMERER
B RIRIIERMABERAED
BFEGTLEFHER RAES
EREEZR-FHNEZEEH =R
BYWMTESTRREBELE T
BAESAERRRR L ANKH
TESHEMREEAK-

S BB EA SRR T
BT IR EH 55 BNEE

below: N
Number of
meetings attended
Name ®A HEGBERY
Mr Chan Ka Sing, Tommy (Chairman) BREBEE (XFE) 4/4
Mr Lee Kin Sang FRrAERAE 4/4
Mr Ng Chun Chuen, David RIRR LA 4/4
Mr Tang Wai Lam HEMEE 4/4

The written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are no less exacting
than those stipulated in Code Provision B.1.3 of
the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee has
made available its terms of reference, on the
website of the Company, explaining its role and
the authority delegated to it by the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBRRE

B. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR B. EERSNREBAENTNHN (&)
MANAGEMENT (continued)

B HrEARWMERKFERAK (#)

B.1 The level and make-up of remuneration and

disclosure (continued)

Work performed by the Remuneration Committee
during the year included the approval of
performance-based bonus to the Executive
Directors and recommending to the Board the
remuneration of a newly appointed Executive
Director.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties.

The emoluments specified in the service contract
appointing an Executive Director consist of a
salary, provident fund contributed by the Group
and a discretionary bonus. The salary is
determined with reference to his duties and
responsibilities, remuneration benchmark in the
industry and prevailing market conditions. The
discretionary bonus is calculated with reference
to the Company’s performance and profitability
as well as his performance determined by the
Board.

The emoluments payable to a Non-executive
Director or an Independent Non-executive
Director are determined by the Board with
reference to the Company’s performance and
profitability, his duties and responsibilities,
remuneration benchmark in the industry and
prevailing market conditions.

ERFEEHEA FHEESN
TEEREMERNTHRITESZ
BMREAMEENTEALARAES
B —EBMEENRNTEEZH
ket

Mz Eec Bt R ERN
BITEBE-

BEATESZRBALMTHA
SRR AAREEMHR
MREERMBREAL-ZFE TS
R BEEEE RITHME
BN E R T ISREMEE %
BIBTEAL IR A R BIMRERE
EAMR ARBHEESHME
EREEZTERRFTE

FRTEFIBULIFATESTZ
MEHESTSHRARRNEER
B R AN % E F B
AT RTFMELERERND
SSIRIRMETE °

2/IRABELL | 50



51

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBRRE

C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

CA1

C.2

Financial reporting

Management provides explanation and
information to the Board to enable the Board to
make an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before the Board for
approval.

The Directors are responsible for selecting and
consistently applying appropriate accounting
policies and preparing financial statements which
give a true and fair view. The Directors are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have
prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment to annual
and interim reports, other price-sensitive
announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules, and reports to
regulators as well as to information required to
be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

A statement by the auditor about its reporting
responsibilities is included in the Independent
Auditor’'s Report on pages 57 and 58 of this
annual report.

Internal controls

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system
of internal controls and for reviewing its
effectiveness through the Audit Committee. The
Board requires management to establish and
maintain sound and effective internal controls.
Evaluation is performed by management on a
regular and ad-hoc basis. Such evaluation covers
all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBRRE

C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued) C. BERKE (&)
C.3 Audit Committee CIBXEES
The Audit Committee provides an important link EZLZEGRAEEETHENRN
between the Board and the Company’s auditor in MEBRETEFSEHARAZE
matters coming within the scope of the group EWZF?WEK%@ BEZLZEg
audit. It also reviews the effectiveness of the TEERI AR EZIE
external audit and of internal control and risk LA&W*BW&EEHBMEHE £ HH
evaluation. The Audit Committee comprises three W - BREERH =B
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr FRTESTELELEE RRE
Lee Kin Sang, Mr Chan Ka Sing, Tommy and Mr SR RIRR LMK EFRR
Ng Chun Chuen, David, none of whom is a former EZERBEREESFIAARAR
partner of the Company’s existing auditing firm. BB RARINAIMEEE A
3 meetings were held during the year. Individual EREZESEAFEHBAARLE
attendance of the committee members is set out MT=ZXAg&% FZEBNHEX
below: N
Number of

meetings attended
Name " E HEERRE
Mr Lee Kin Sang (Chairman) TEERE (XFE) 33
Mr Chan Ka Sing, Tommy RxEEAE 3/3
Mr Ng Chun Chuen, David RIERRFEAE 33
Full minutes of the Audit Committee are kept by EZLZEGHNTEERLHKEH
the Company Secretary of the Company. Draft RRARZARAMERT -BRE
and final versions of minutes of the Audit BE2eRLBENTRERETER
Committee meetings were sent to all members of BEEEZg BAEBERBMRLR
the Committee for their comment and records ?é‘?ié%@ DA =RE IR =99
respectively, in both cases within a reasonable BREEZR ZEEREALE
time after the meeting. Z R
The written terms of reference of the Audit EEZEoNRESE Y MER
Committee are no less exacting than those (EERBER ST SFRIME
stipulated in Code Provision C.3.3 of the CG Code. CI33MMENFTLE-BREES
The Audit Committee has made available its terms ERAQRIEE EAREBREES
of reference, on the website of the Company, B mEEACRESSERT
explaining its role and the authority delegated to RS-

it by the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBRRE

C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

C.3 Audit Committee (continued)

Work performed by the Audit Committee during
the year included:

reviewing the financial statements for the year
ended 28 February 2006;

reviewing the financial statements for the six
months ended 31 August 2006;
meeting with the external auditor to discuss

the scope of its audit work;

reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control,

reviewing the external auditor's management
letter and management'’s response;

reviewing the compliance of the CG Code;
and

recommending the appointment of the
external auditor.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties.

53| 424RABELL
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBRRE

C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

C.3

c4

Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee has recommended for the
re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the
external auditor of the Company. The
recommendation was agreed by the Board and
will be put forward for the approval of the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Auditor’s remuneration

During the year, the services provided by, and
the associated remuneration paid to,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the principal external
auditor of the Group, and its affiliated firms were

C. BERZHE (#)

C3ERZET (#)

ENRERCRBERBKES
SRS PTE@EAR R R M IMNE X
BE-FHRACREZERE
EBET—RBRRBEFANEG LR
2EBEFER

CA4EEME

ERFEHEA RNEEEEIH
B A2 B 28 S RoK B & AR E 15
Ko BB E MR TR (2 RS M TR
Exfrza@memT:

as follows:
HK$'000
FH& T
Audit =8 1,450
Taxation 7 239
1,689
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBRRE

D. DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

D.1 Management functions

When the Board delegates aspects of its
management and administration functions to
management, it gives at the same time clear
directions as to the powers of management, in
particular, with respect to the circumstances where
management should report back and obtain prior
approval from the Board before making decisions
or entering into any commitments on behalf of
the Company.

Functions reserved by the Board include the
formulation of business strategies, appointment
of directors and senior executives, approval of
financial statements and budgets, proposal of
selection of auditors, and proposal and declaration
of dividends.

D.2 Board Committees

Where board committees are established to deal
with matters, the Board shall prescribe sufficiently
clear terms of reference to enable such
committees to discharge their functions properly.

Particulars of the Remuneration Committee and
the Audit Committee have been disclosed under
B.1 and C.3, respectively. Copies of minutes of
meetings of the two Committees have been sent
to the Board for information.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBRRE

E.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

E.1

E.2

Effective communication

At the Annual General Meeting held on 28 July
2006 (the “2006 AGM"), a separate resolution
was proposed by the Chairman of the Board in
respect of each substantially separate issue.

The Chairman of the Board and a delegate duly
appointed by the Chairman of the Audit
Committee have attended the 2006 AGM to
answer questions.

Voting by Poll

The procedures for and the rights of shareholders
to demand a poll in the 2006 AGM were disclosed
in the circular to shareholders.

At the commencement of the 2006 AGM, the
Chairman of the Board explained to the
shareholders of the Company the procedures for
demanding a poll by shareholders before putting
a resolution to the vote on a show of hands and
the detailed procedures for conducting a poll.

E. ERRNBE

E.1

E.2

BNER

E_ZEERFLH-TN\BETT
WRERRFRG ([ZEEXF
BRERBAFRKE]) E2SEFE
MEEERBINEEERRY

/j%p%;ﬁ°

EFeXIRABHEREZES
HERENRRE_TTERNFR

RBFEREG LEERRA-
BUEBRERFARR
E-ZERFRRBAFAE LN

BEHDARRNERF ARBKR
A ESRKUARETAKRNEFE
OIEBBUR B

EEEIRE_STRFRRB
FASHBFERBLERZERIA
BFHARRZATRIR ZR AR
EARRANEF UAREER
AEREBFARARBER T AK
EhHETRR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B &R RE

PRICEWATERHOUSE(QOPERS

BOERKESMERM

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MIRABELL INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Mirabell International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 59 to 136, which comprise the consolidated and
Company balance sheets as at 28 February 2007, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to
the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

/#/IRABELL

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

BUMIRABELL INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
XEEHERZERERAT KRR
(REAEHSFMK Lz HRLF])

RAZEEN (AT [E M) B FZ5#
7 2 59% 136 H Mirabell International
Holdings Limited (B EBIRZERBR A
a*) ([ER27])) REWBAR (L T4&
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B &R RE

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity's preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 28 February 2007 and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 June 2007
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

REEHERK

For the year ended 28 February 2007 B8Z—ZZ+tH&_A-+N\BLFE

2007 2006
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 2E FTER FHET
Turnover EHER 5 934,225 866,238
Cost of sales 5 & B A 6 (377,503) (360,385)
Gross profit E A 556,722 505,853
Other income HAa A 5 5,298 4,614
Other gains, net Hib e F58 7 4,701 2,236
Distribution and selling costs 7 85 K 85 & A AR 6 (399,157) (359,541)
Administrative expenses THEA 6 (106,590) (98,666)
Operating profit LR 60,974 54,496
Finance costs V%EA 8 (2,199) (2,321)
Share of profit of an associate iR /NE T 19 58,002 19,713
Profit before income tax BR P18 B A& R 116,777 71,888
Income tax expense Frisfi 8 A 9 (11,315) (6,391)
Profit attributable to equity EATEEFEA
holders of the Company P& 15 3% F 10 105,462 65,497
Earnings per share (expressed in &R ZF| (L8 KB WL
HK cents per share) 5 R)
- Basic —-HXK 11 41.4 centsfll  25.7 centsfl
- Diluted —#5 11 41.0 centsfll 25.7 centsflll
Dividends ’E 12 3,818 47,088
ZRABELL



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
REEEREX

As at 28 February 2007 R=ZZ+tF=-HA=+/\H

2007 2006
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B & FTER FHET
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ERY TP 14 39,638 41,251
Investment properties KEWE 15 56,460 53,448
Leasehold land and land ME L &+ b5
use rights 16 15,697 17,704
Intangible assets BEEE 17 14,905 13,321
Interest in an associate RN 19 864,389 59,343
Rental deposits MERS 24,735 29,727
Non-current deposits EMEBIER 20 - 10,702
Deferred income tax assets BEXEMEHEE 21 9,900 7,965
1,025,724 233,461
Current assets RBEE
Inventories rE 22 182,052 154,148
Trade receivables JiE W BR 3R 23 80,646 70,231
Other receivables, H At JE K
deposits and prepayments Ze RIEN R 49,008 30,010
Taxation recoverable JE WUR B 3,770 1,687
Cash and cash equivalents ReEkREFEY 24 108,246 114,891
Derivative financial instruments fTESmMIT A 25 - 80
423,722 371,047
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables JE 1~ BR 3K 26 48,666 42,234
Other payables and H b fE TR
accrued charges fExt &R 69,420 60,384
Taxation payable JE -t 75 18 8,814 6,565
Short-term bank borrowings HHER1TEE 27 25,008 47,817
151,908 157,000
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

REEERER

As at 28 February 2007 R=ZZ+tF=-HA=+/\H

2007 2006
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 TET FET
Net current assets REBEEFE 271,814 214,047
Total assets less current HEERRBARS
liabilities 1,297,538 447,508
Non-current liabilities *RBEE
Other non-current liabilities BEMIERBaE 11,514 8,107
Deferred income tax liabilities BEXEMEHAE 21 1,697 1,338
13,211 9,445
Net assets FEE 1,284,327 438,063
Equity R
Share capital N 28 25,453 25,453
Other reserves H b 29 871,003 112,384
Retained earnings RE&EF
— Proposed final dividend — # R R B AR B 29 - 13,999
— Others —Hfb 29 387,871 286,227
Total equity R 1,284,327 438,063
Tang Wai Lam Ng Man Kit, Lawrence
B E M RER#E
Director Director
= o
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BALANCE SHEET
EERER

As at 28 February 2007 R=ZZ+tF=-HA=+/\H

2007 2006
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FEx FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries =N R =) 18 77,598 69,254
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries N ENGIE @ 18 81,399 96,043
Cash and cash equivalents RehkReFEEY 24 175 145
81,574 96,188
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and H b fE R &
accrued charges fExt &R 678 309
Net current assets REBEEFE 80,896 95,879
Total assets less current HEERRBAS
liabilities 158,494 165,133
Equity R
Share capital N 28 25,453 25,453
Other reserves H b 29 119,374 111,030
Retained earnings RE&EF
— Proposed final dividend — ¥R R EIRR B 29 - 13,999
— Others — H Aty 29 13,667 14,651
Total equity R 158,494 165,133
Tang Wai Lam Ng Man Kit, Lawrence
AZEM RE#G
Director Director
2 EFH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RERBZEH R

For the year ended 28 February 2007 B8Z—ZZ+tH&_A-+N\BLFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

KAREREE ARG
Share Other Retained
capital reserves earnings Total
&N H 1t & REEF wmE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THER THET
Balance as at 1 March 2006 W _-ZZT X4
Z“A—Hz&# 25,453 112,384 300,226 438,063
Currency translation ERERZE
differences - 2,795 - 2,795
Profit for the year AREEm A - - 105,462 105,462
Share option scheme AR HET &
— value of services -k%<zEE - 8,344 - 8,344
Share of fair value gain i NG|
of an associate N E R E - 747,480 - 747,480
2006 Final dividend paid ZETRF
B R R E AR S - - (13,999) (13,999)
2007 Interim dividend paid —ZTZT+F
B R # EA AR S - - (3,818) (3,818)
Balance as at RZZETLF_H
28 February 2007 s WA= 25,453 871,003 387,871 1,284,327
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RERBZEH R

For the year ended 28 February 2007 BZ—TZ+tF A=+ \BLFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARRERBEEAEWL
Share Other Retained
capital reserves earnings Total
AR H fth 5 15 RE&BH ks
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
Balance as at 1 March 2005 R_-_ZZTRH&F
Z“A—Hz&# 25,453 110,986 284,617 421,056
Currency translation EBERZSE
differences - 1,398 - 1,398
Profit for the year REE 5w A - - 65,497 65,497
2005 Final dividend paid —ETRF
B R R E AR S - - (16,799) (16,799)
2006 Interim dividend paid ~—ZZTNF
B R HA AR S - - (7,636) (7,636)
2006 Special dividend paid —ZZTNF
EYEEHIL & - - (25,453) (25,453)
Balance as at AZETRFZ
28 February 2006 s AN =R 25,453 112,384 300,226 438,063
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
RERETRER

For the year ended 28 February 2007 B8Z—ZZ+tH&_A-+N\BLFE

2007 2006
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FTERT FET
Cash flow from operating activities R FH 2 HERE
Cash generated REFTHEEZR R
from operations 30 69,508 38,693
Interest paid 2 AT H A (2,199) (2,321)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEENEH (3,005) (7,022)
Overseas taxation paid B8 SN K (9,720) (3,676)
Net cash generated from RETHELEZREFE
operating activities 54,584 25,674
Cash flow from investing activities BREFE 2B ESRE
Purchase of property, BEME HBILEE
plant and equipment (21,405) (26,385)
Proceed from disposal of HEME #aE K
property, plant and JBRTFER
equipment 31 -
Proceed from disposal of HEREMEMBER
an investment property - 7,934
Interest received R ERIPS) 920 917
Dividend received from BB & A R AR R
an associate - 54,000
Net cash (used in)/generated RETES (R EE£2
from investing activities ReF#E (20,454) 36,466
Cash flow from financing activities BMEFH 2B ERE
New bank loans raised FIGRITREE 70,279 88,598
Repayment of bank loans BERTEE (94,846) (72,532)
Dividends paid 2k % & (17,817) (49,888)
Net cash used in financing METHEAZRSFE
activities (42,384) (33,822)
//IRABELL



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HERETRER

For the year ended 28 February 2007 B8Z—ZZ+tH&_A-+N\BLFE

2007 2006
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FERT FHETT
Net (decrease)/increase incash BERBLZEY
and cash equivalents (R 2) /EhnFEEE (8,254) 28,318
Cash and cash equivalents at RENzRERAS
beginning of year £EY 114,891 86,357
Effect of foreign exchange rate /N E RS E) » &
changes 1,609 216
Cash and cash equivalents RERZRERBREEEY
at end of year 24 108,246 114,891
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LR

28 February 2007 —ZZtF=-HF =+ N\H

GENERAL INFORMATION

Mirabell International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the retailing,
wholesaling and manufacturing of footwear.

The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The principal place
of business is at 8/F, Wyler Centre, Phase Il, 200 Tai
Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars
("HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements were approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 21 June 2007.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

L/IRABELL
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LR

28 February 2007 —ZZtF=-HF =+ N\H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EESHHBERE (&)

(continued)

21 IRREXE

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Mirabell
International Holdings Limited have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS"). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative financial
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss
and investments properties, which are carried at
fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in Note 4.

*

Mirabell International Holdings
Limited (EEEBRZRAR A
AlY) MEEMBERRDERE
75 81 7% ¥ & 2 Bl ([HKFRS]) #®
R GeMBmREILBESLK
RERB AR AFERRE
RIRZMBEENMKAR
(BETEEBIE) URER
FEIEZREMENEMGHMIE
HAERT -

HETAHKFRSH B REREE
FRETHARSHHE-ETE
EERECRARNSEESBUR
BEPOTEEAH - SRIEN
HE s s E MM EE 508
KA BHRRBERNREMN
HEMNEE EHF4ThEE-

ZE 5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LR

28 February 2007 —ZZtF=-HF =+ N\H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

(b)

69 | ~/ZIRABELL

Amendment to published standards effective
in 2006

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 4 (Amendment),
“Financial guarantee contracts”, effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2006. This amendment requires
issued financial guarantees, other than those
previously asserted by the entity to be
insurance contracts, to be initially recognised
at their fair value, and subsequently measured
at the higher of (i) the unamortised balance
of the related fees received and deferred, and
(ii) the expenditure required to settle the
commitment at the balance sheet date. The
adoption of this amendment does not have a
significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the
Group

The following standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards have
been published and are mandatory for the
Group's accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 May 2006 or later periods. The Group
has started considering their potential impact.
Based on the preliminary assessment, the
Group believes that the adoption of these
standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards, if applicable, will not
result in substantial changes to the Group’s
accounting policies. The Group has not early
adopted these standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards, if
applicable, in the financial statements for the
year ended 28 February 2007.

2. EESTTHERRBE (|

21 MAREE (&)

(a)

(b)

Y EENFENEHE
ERNEET

HKAS 39K HKFRS 4 ({&7])
- THBERAHINE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LR

28 February 2007 —ZZtF=-HF =+ N\H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the
Group (continued)

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
(Amendment) Statements - Capital

Disclosures'

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures'

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments?

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 23

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives*

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment®

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury
Share Transactions®
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements’

' Effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2007

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2009

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 May 2006

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 June 2006

> Effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 November 2006

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 March 2007

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2008
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)

L/IRABELL

Standards, amendments and interpretations
effective in 2006 but not relevant for the
Group’s operations

The following standards, amendments and
interpretations are mandatory for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2006
but are not relevant to the Group’s operations:
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HKAS 21
(Amendment)
HKAS 39
(Amendment)
HKAS 39
(Amendment)
HKFRSs 1 & 6
(Amendment)
HKFRS 6
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4

HK(IFRIC)-Int 5

HK(IFRIC)-Int 6

HK(IFRIC)-Int 7

Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation

Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of
Forecast Intragroup Transactions

The Fair Value Option

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
and Exploration for and
Evaluation of Mineral Resources

Exploration for and Evaluation of
Mineral Resources

Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease

Rights to Interests arising from
Decommissioning, Restoration
and Environmental
Rehabilitation Funds

Liabilities arising from
Participating in a Specific
Market — Waste Electrical and
Electronic Equipment

Applying the Restatement
Approach under HKAS 29,
Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LR
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries made up to 28 February.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has
the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the
voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another
entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used
to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries
by the Group. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date, irrespective of the extent of any minority
interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in the income statement.

2. EESTTHERRBE (|

2.2 &REKHE

HAEMBRREEANRT LA
EWNBARIBE_A_+TNRIL
AR T

(a) KB A]

P /&8~ ) 5 A 5 [ B RE AR
—REMBREERR2EE
(BRBHRANDE) X —
REEBBE - FREEZK
BN ERNEEEEES
»—EEF BRATEX
ARBNBEERRENTE
rEEHTERE-

fY A m] BRI E R A K
BzREZEEAARK I
RIEFIERIE 2 BIRIEES
ABRe

SARBEANTEAEE
LGN NG SIS RY
RATIIZ R B IR &
E/BITRET AREES
EEZRBEZATESE
MR 2 B AT AR © By
WEARBcEEREBA
HEEREZBBREIAR
BEIRRRERKRERZA
FEFE AwE DA
BRME o 1) BURR - W B X N R
B 7N 5% [ FE A6 P U B) A
FREERNTFEZBEARLS
7 o {1 A2 S K AR IR T L
BHBARMNEBEERFE"
ERDERGCERaRTRE

<7
o

L/IRABELL | 72



73

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (continued)
Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides
impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

evidence of an

In the Company’s balance sheet, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less provision for impairment losses. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted by the
Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

(b) Associates

L/IRABELL

Associates are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not
control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting and are initially recognised at
cost. The Group’s investment in associates
includes goodwill (net of any accumulated
impairment loss) identified on acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LR

28 February 2007 —ZZtF=-HF =+ N\H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EESHHBERE (&)
(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued) 22 &#EKRE (ME)
(b) Associates (continued) (b) BELa (&)

The Group’'s share of its associates’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in
the income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in reserves s
recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against
the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the
associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

AEEHEERBREBER
AIMFERBENRER P
FER M (R B 12 rO Bt 2
N AR R B A T
R WBRNRBESH IR
BREZREEFRE -
SEEMRBZEARNEREE
FRFARREMGBZE AR
e (BREMEMEER
ZIEMRSR) AR B T B
REBEINBR BIEAEHE
BHETHERABERRX
BE/S=E

ESRNESE IR NI A
ZMELNRERKDZA
SEIATIEERE T AEE R
X HIREEREAME
BEELBERE SRIARE
BERTTHE -BELQA

SHHRECEFTEZBRAT
YEIE AT - DATE OR B2 AN £ [ Py
R 2 R — B

Z/IRABELL | 74



75

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3 Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and
operations engaged in providing products or
services that are subject to risks and returns that
are different from those of other business
segments. A geographical segment is engaged in
providing products or services within a particular
economic environment that are subject to risks
and returns that are different from those of
segments operating in other economic
environments.

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant
and equipment, investment properties, leasehold
land and land use rights, intangible assets, rental
deposits, non-current deposits, inventories,
receivables, operating cash and derivative financial
instruments and exclude items such as taxation
recoverable and deferred income tax assets.
Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities
and exclude items such as taxation payable and
deferred income tax liabilities. Capital expenditure
comprises additions to property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, leasehold land
and land use rights and intangible assets.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, sales
are based on the geographical area in which the
customer is located; and total assets and capital
expenditure are based on where the assets are
located.

L/IRABELL

2. EEETTRERBE ()

3 o EEH K

—EEB S IR EREERK
RSz —HEERER MzA
BENMEKZRBRRKBFRE IR
HMEBDE — @z 530
EE—RBELERBETREREM
EMSRE mZzoBzER &

B3R A Bl 1E H 48 B IR I 48 &
H 5 EB o

PHMEEFERIEME HKEX
BB REWE-HE MR
FRE EFEE HERS I
nBiEe HFE BWHKIE &E
fﬁ%&fﬁiéﬁﬁlﬁcﬁ?’ﬂ%
JEW R MBS HEE D
HeERREEEAE BETEE
JENHBEMEEMSHAE -8
REAZBIEMSE HEREE &
é#@%\%ﬂﬁim&ii@ﬁﬁﬁ%
UEBEEEZARE

N

ERMEDBRE HERIR
REPHEMEBFE-BEEN
BARAXAREEMEFT &



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LR

28 February 2007 —ZZtF=-HF =+ N\H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

L/IRABELL

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of
equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign operations, and of borrowings, are
taken to equity holders’ equity. When a
foreign operation is partially disposed of or
sold, exchange differences that were recorded
in equity are recognised in the income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LR

28 February 2007 —ZZtF=-HF =+ N\H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EESHBERBEE (&)
(continued)

2.4 HBmE (&)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies (continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged in the income
statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their costs to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 3% - 5%

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining

period of leases

Furniture, fixtures and 20% - 33"3%
office equipment

Motor vehicles 25% - 33"3%

Plant and machinery 20%
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and
are included in administrative expenses.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and that is
not occupied by the companies in the consolidated
group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under
operating leases and buildings held under finance
leases. Land held under operating leases are
classified and accounted for as investment
property when the rest of the definition of
investment property is met. The operating lease
is accounted for as if it were a finance lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LR
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EESHEBE (&)
(continued)

26 REMF ()

2.6 Investment properties (continued)

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs. After initial
recognition, investment property is carried at fair
value. Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset.
These valuations are reviewed annually by external
valuers.

The fair value of investment property reflects,
among other things, rental income from current
leases and assumptions about rental income from
future leases in the light of current market
conditions.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any
cash outflows that could be expected in respect
of the property. Some of those outflows are
recognised as a liability, including finance lease
liabilities in respect of land classified as investment
property; others, including contingent rent
payments, are not recognised in the financial
statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed in the income
statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the
income statement, as part of other gains, net.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.7 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

L/IRABELL

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of
an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the net identifiable assets
of the acquired associate at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of
associates is included in investments in
is tested annually for
impairment as part of the overall balance.
Separately recognised goodwill is tested
annually for impairment and carried at cost
less impairment
Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of
an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

associates and

accumulated losses.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
for the purpose of impairment testing.

Patents and licenses

Patents and licenses on branded products are
stated at cost, which represent capitalisation
of the minimum license fees payments in
accordance with the license agreements.
License rights have a finite useful life and are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is made in accordance with the
pattern of economic inflow to the Group.

License fees payable are recognised initially
at fair value using the effective interest
method and subsequently stated at amortised
cost less the amounts paid.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.8

2.9

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have
not yet been available for use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Assets other than goodwill that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.

Assets

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured at their fair values.
Changes in the fair value of any derivative
financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are recognised immediately in the
income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.10 Financial guarantee

2.1

A financial guarantee (a kind of insurance
contract) is a contract that requires the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payments when due in accordance
with the original or modified terms of a debt
instrument. The Group does not recognise
liabilities for financial guarantees at inception, but
performs a liability adequacy test at each reporting
date by comparing its net liability regarding the
financial guarantee with the amount that would
be required if the financial guarantee would result
in a present legal or constructive obligation. If
the liability is less than its present legal or
constructive obligation amount, the entire
difference is recognised in the income statement
immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EESHEBE (&)
(continued)

2.12 FE W % EL il B Ui PR K

2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of the
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, probability that the debtors will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default
or delinquency in payments are considered
indicators that the trade receivable is impaired.
The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the assets is reduced
through the use of an allowance account, and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the income
statement. When a trade receivable is
uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for trade receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited in distribution and selling
costs.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as
a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.15 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

2.17 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of
any qualifying asset are capitalised during the
period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use. Other
borrowing costs are expensed.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EESHEBE (&)
(continued)

218 IEIEFT B

2.18 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and associates, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.19 Employee benefits

(a)

L/IRABELL

Retirement benefits

Arrangements for staff retirement benefits are
made in accordance with local regulations and
customs.

The Group's employees in Mainland China are
covered by various government sponsored
pension plans. These government agencies are
responsible for the pension liabilities to these
employees. The relevant group companies pay
monthly contributions to these pension plans
based on certain percentages of the salaries,
subject to a certain ceiling. Under these plans,
the Group has no legal or constructive
obligation to make further payments once the
required contributions have been paid.
Contributions to these plans are expensed as
incurred.

The Group's employees in Mainland China are
also entitled to participate in various
government-sponsored medical insurance plan
and housing funds. The relevant group
companies pay monthly contributions to these
funds based on certain percentages of the
salaries. The Group’s liability in respect of
these funds is limited to the contributions
paid. Contributions to these plans are
expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Retirement benefits (continued)

The Group’s Hong Kong and overseas
employees are entitled to participate in a
number of defined contribution pension
schemes, the assets of which are generally
held in separate trustee-administered funds.
The pension schemes are generally funded
by payments from employees and by the
relevant group companies.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and
long-service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

Provisions for profit sharing and bonus plans
due wholly within 12 months after the
balance sheet date are recognised when the
Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (continued)

(d)

L/IRABELL

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as
an expense. The total amount to be expensed
over the vesting period is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options
granted, excluding the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets). Non-
market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to vest. At each balance
sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to
vest. It recognises the impact of the revision
of original estimates, if any, in the income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment
to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to
share capital (nominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.20 Contingent liabilities

2.21

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will
be required or the amount of obligation cannot
be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will
then be recognised as a provision.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.21 Provisions (continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of
the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

2.22 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods and services in the ordinary course of
the Group's activities. Revenue is shown, net of
value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts
and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity and specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities as described below. The
amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably
measurable until all contingencies relating to the
sale have been resolved. The Group bases its
estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a) Sales of goods — retail
Sales of goods are recognised when a group

entity sells a product to the customer. Retail
sales are usually in cash or by credit card.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition (continued)

(b) Sales of goods — wholesale

(c)

The Group manufactures and sells a range of
footwear products in the wholesale market.
Sales of goods are recognised when a group
entity has delivered products to the
wholesaler, the wholesaler has full discretion
over the channel and price to sell the
products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the wholesaler’s acceptance
of the products. Delivery does not occur until
the products have been shipped to the
specified location, the risks of obsolescence
and loss have been transferred to the
wholesaler, and either the wholesaler has
accepted the products in accordance with
sales contract, the acceptance provisions have
lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been
satisfied.

Royalty income
Royalty income is recognised on an accrual

basis in accordance with the substance of the
relevant agreements.

2. EEETTRERBE ()

222 SR (ME)

(b)

(c)

Emif & —##%

AR E AR E TS RE R
E-RINEBEBER BEAR
EERCAEMRT TR
BOREBHHEEMRMR
BREBEATERERE:
HRBERBITHETAIER
BT B A o BV R RS
EmEERERAR - BE
D& T ERE A B
RMBXERCDERETHH
Mt ERCREHEA
H) i WOE qh - SR IR SR
R S AKEAEEERE
BRATARWBIERERETT
B EMXNTEEL

ZFIEMA

SR ARIRARE &
BEE BT EEER

Z/IRABELL

92



93

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LR

28 February 2007 —ZZtF=-HF =+ N\H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition (continued)

(d)

(e)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective interest
method. When a receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and
continues unwinding the discount as interest
income.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right
to receive payment is established.

2.23 Leases (as the leasee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

2.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity
holders is recognised as a liability in the Group’s
financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s equity
holders or directors, where appropriate.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and
Mainland China and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures. Most of the Group’s operating
activities are denominated in Renminbi and
Hong Kong dollars. Foreign exchange risk
arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations. In addition,
the conversion of Renminbi into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of the foreign exchange control
promulgated by the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC") government.

To manage the foreign exchange risk arising
from future commercial transactions and
recognised assets and liabilities, the Group
enters into foreign exchange forward
contracts to reduce foreign exchange risk.

(b) Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets except for bank deposits, the
Group's income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates. The Group's exposure
to changes in interest rate risk arises from
bank deposits and bank borrowings. Bank
deposits and bank borrowings at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. The Group has not used any interest
rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

(d)

L/IRABELL

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables and other
current assets except for prepayments,
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to its financial assets.
Management has policies in place to monitor
the exposures to these credit risks on an
ongoing basis. The Group has policies to
ensure that wholesale sales of products are
made to customers with an appropriate credit
history and the Group performs periodic credit
evaluations of its customers. Sales to retail
customers are made in cash or via credit cards.
The Group’s historical experience in collection
of trade and other receivables falls within the
recorded allowances and the directors are of
the opinion that adequate provision for
uncollectible trade receivable has been made.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of
available credit facilities. The Group aims to
maintain flexibility in funding by keeping
credit lines available.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets including trade and other receivables, cash
and cash equivalents and derivative financial
instruments, and financial liabilities including trade
and other payables and short-term bank
borrowings are assumed to approximate their fair
values due to their short maturities.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment, leasehold land and land use rights

The Group assesses annually whether property,
plant and equipment, leasehold land and land
use rights have any indication of impairment. The
recoverable amounts have been determined based
on value-in-use calculations or market valuations.
These calculations require the use of judgement
and estimates.

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties have been
determined with reference to independent
valuations. The best evidence of fair value is
current price in an active market for similar lease
and other contracts. The Group employed an
independent firm of professional surveyor to
determine the open market values for the
investment properties of the Group. These
valuations require the use of judgement and
estimates.

Estimated write-downs of inventories to net
realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable
value based on an assessment of the realisability
of inventories. Write-downs on inventories are
recorded where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be realised.
The identification of write-downs requires the use
of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectations are different from the original
estimates, such differences will impact the carrying
value of inventories and write-downs of inventories
in the year in which such estimates have been
changed.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)

(d)

(e)

Estimated impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of
receivables based on an assessment of the
recoverability of the receivables. Provisions are
applied to receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not
be collectible. The identification of impairment of
receivables requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectations are different
from the original estimates, such differences will
impact the carrying value of receivables and loss
for the impairment of receivable is recognised in
the year in which such estimates have been
changed.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current income
tax and deferred income tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

4. EESFAEFRAE (8

(d)

FE Wi B K oz i BT R {E

7R 5 B AR 15 B R R K AT W [al 1 2
AfE MAETT R R 2 BE &
BEMFBREXBRNNERTEK
AR B4 BR A BE AR RE W (o] B % F 1
Bt BRI YRR ZBMESZ
R HE M fEFT ERMZ 28R
HRABHERER AZER
B fEET = 2 I A 2 B
£ R 2 BRE B N B AR X
ZREE 1R

Frig®i

AEEFEEZ ERDEER M
ISR -BHZ RS MAEMY
MRERZRBETE A T T
HeoAEEREHREH RN
BN G E LIRS E
AARBHERAE - MHFEMHD
REFRBARREFYCENS R
TR HEZBERTEFELNLS
B RS HRMIELTR SR
B
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 4., EESIHAEFTRHE (&)

(continued)
(f) Employee benefits - share-based payments (f) BEGA -UROGAERNNTR

R B RN R EAR
REERERHPZRDEE 4
FHRTRAT AR R IRETTE A
ZERRN R LI R E 2 R
A FR R L #1785
BECRREHBEEMRE H
ERNGTERBARECT
BEHRNERRK

The valuation of the fair value of the share options
at the grant date requires judgement in
determining the expected volatility of the share
price, the dividends expected on the shares, the
risk-free interest rate during the life of the options
and the number of the share options that are
expected to vest. Where the number of options
that are expected to vest is different, such
difference will impact the income statement in
subsequent remaining vesting period of the
relevant share options.

5. TURNOVER, OTHER INCOME AND SEGMENT 5, EXBE -HW ARSI HEH

INFORMATION

AEBZIEXBREBERTE:
1t B N B o TE AR F T2 B O BE R

The Group is principally engaged in retailing,
wholesaling and manufacturing of footwear. Revenues

99

recognised during the year are as follows: WA
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FBT
Turnover EER
Sales of goods EMHE 934,225 866,238
Other income Hig A
Royalty income BHERA 4,375 3,694
Interest income A2 WA 920 917
Others Hh 3 3
5,298 4,614
Total 48 7R 939,523 870,852

Primary reporting format - geographical segments

The Group’s business operates in three main
geographical areas, namely the Hong Kong and Macau
market, the Mainland China market and the Taiwan

market.

L/IRABELL
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5. TURNOVER, OTHER INCOME AND SEGMENT 5, X - HWW AR HER
INFORMATION (continued) (#])
Primary reporting format — geographical segments FEREFEX-HES I (F&)
(continued)
Hong Kong Mainland
and Macau China Taiwan Total
EEBRERM HEKAE =91 ]
2007 2007 2007 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FER FER TER
Gross segment sales DEHE 763,624 327,110 24,701 1,115,435
Inter-segment sales DEEHEE (160,244)  (20,966) - (181,210)
603,380 306,144 24,701 934,225
Segment results DEEE 30,099 37,593 (6,718) 60,974
Finance costs MBER (2,199)
Share of profit of an FE 15 & 1 A
associate i ) - 58,002 - 58,002
Profit before income tax BR BT 15 %% A1 % A1 116,777
Income tax expense g & M (11,315)
Profit attributable to equity NN
holders of the Company B ARG RAF 105,462
Segment assets 7 EPE B 257,328 293,911 20,148 571,387
Interest in an associate BT R - 864,389 - 864,389
Taxation recoverable e YR B ) 3,770
Deferred income tax assets BEFTSEMEE 9,900
Total assets BEE 1,449,446
Segment liabilities DHEE 76,884 73,300 4,424 154,608
Taxation payable JE {75118 8,814
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSRAE 1,697
Total liabilities waE 165,119
Capital expenditure BARM R 16,645 10,067 1,459 28,171
Depreciation of property, plant ¥ % - #2E M R &
and equipment e 11,395 8,586 1,867 21,848
Amortisation of leasehold land ~ FA & 1 3 & + b
and land use rights 150 A3 7 4 3 1,675 332 - 2,007
Amortisation of intangible assets % & & # £ 2,332 2,359 491 5,182
(Write-back of)/provision for REFE
inventory obsolescence (B@) /#h (1,163) (2,740) 993 (2,910)
Provision for impairment of JEE W AR TR B
receivables g - 268 596 864
ZZIRABELL | 100
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5. TURNOVER, OTHER INCOME AND SEGMENT 5.
INFORMATION (continued)

Primary reporting format - geographical segments
(continued)

EXBFE HtBW ARSI HBESR

(&)

TEBRERX-HESH (&)

Hong Kong  Mainland
and Macau China Taiwan Total
HBERRM  PEKRE =) k)
2006 2006 2006 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FET T
Gross segment sales DEIEE 746,034 276,520 11,847 1,034,401
Inter-segment sales D EfESH & (147,708)  (20,455) - (168,163)
598,326 256,065 11,847 866,238
Segment results DEEE 36,418 23,231 (5,153) 54,496
Finance costs % E R (2,321)
Share of profit of an FE (LB & 2 7]
associate o ) - 19,713 - 19,713
Profit before income tax BR B 15 B4 A 4 A 71,888
Income tax expense g & M (6,391)
Profit attributable to equity PN
holders of the Company BAEAREMLR 65,497
Segment assets D EBE B 276,495 248,282 10,736 535,513
Interest in an associate RN - 59,343 - 59,343
Taxation recoverable JE WUR Bt 1,687
Deferred income tax assets EXEFGEREE 7,965
Total assets mEE 604,508
Segment liabilities DHEE 83,477 74,403 662 158,542
Taxation payable JE 1 %5118 6,565
Deferred income tax liabilities  EEFEREE 1,338
Total liabilities mafE 166,445
Capital expenditure BARM R 18,374 20,268 5,826 44,468
Depreciation of property, plant ~ #1% - #22 MR &
and equipment e 9,717 7,866 1,130 18,713
Amortisation of leasehold land A& 1 3b & £ b
and land use rights {5 Al #EH 1,673 332 - 2,005
Amortisation of intangible assets %2 & & # §5 4,477 1,948 337 6,762
(Write-back of)/provision for REFE
inventory obsolescence (BE) /B (2,103) 2,701 - 598
ZRABELL
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5.

TURNOVER, OTHER INCOME AND SEGMENT 5.

INFORMATION (continued)

Secondary reporting format — business segments

The Group's principal activities are retailing,
wholesaling and manufacturing of footwear. No
business segment information has been prepared by
the Group for the years ended 28 February 2006 and
2007 as less than 10% of the Group's turnover and
results are attributable to wholesaling and

manufacturing.

EXPENSES BY NATURE

6. RUMEIENEHN

EXBFE HtBW ARSI HBESR

REBRERR -HBE5H

AEBTFTEZEXEBRREEEMNCTE:
HoEE K Bl A HEEE K B3 E 1%L
REEEXBERFEELN10% - E
It AR S B 4 AR LA
“AZ+N\BRZZEZE+F_A=
TNANBIEFEANEBDELZE R -

E-EERF

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Auditor’s remuneration % SR B 1,569 1,219
Depreciation of property, plant ME HEREHETE
and equipment 21,848 18,713
Amortisation of leasehold land and MELTH LA
land use rights 3 2,007 2,005
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH 5,182 6,762
Cost of inventories sold EHERFERA 354,336 337,484
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME HERBEEIE
and equipment 1,243 391
Loss on disposal of an investment HEREMEEE
property - 66
Employee benefit expenses (including EE®&FZER (B3
directors’ emoluments): EEME)
— Wages, salaries and allowances —TE& FHa KER 149,970 137,274
— Share-based payments in relation —FABRTESEKES
to share options granted to B 53 AR HE 2 DA Bt
directors and employees RER K 8,344 -
— Pension costs —RRAE T & R 4,333 4,143
(Write-back of)/provision for PREFE (BR) #E
inventory obsolescence (2,910) 598
Provision for impairment of receivables & 4 B ZX (B B 864 -
Operating leases rental in respect of METHWREFLKERE
leasehold land and buildings, Me PRERIAES
including contingent rental 93,295,000/ 7T
expenses of HK$93,295,000 (ZZEZTRF:
(2006: HK$54,082,000) 54,082,000/ JT ) 228,626 203,632
Outgoings in respect of investment HEMEZ M
properties 172 144
Others HAth 107,666 106,161
Total cost of sales, distribution and HEKA DiHREE
selling costs, and administrative AR RATINE A
expenses R 883,250 818,592
//IRABELL
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7. OTHER GAINS, NET 7. HtWzm FE
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FABT
Exchange gains P& 5 2,109 2,157
Fair value gains on investment properties & & %) % A F (B Uk 25 3,012 -
Fair value (losses)/gains on derivative TESMITAENATE
financial instruments (B8) haw (420) 79
4,701 2,236
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BIiEE A
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FABT
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts  $R/TEE RBEXFIE 2,199 2,321
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FiEHER
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate EEHEMERM THILRBANEE (45 ES
of 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable A EE T E175% (B ENF:
profit for the year. Taxation on overseas profits has 17.5%) 2 BEHE HHNFE 2 RiZh
been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for Bl| # BB 7N 4F [& (i 51 e 21 % 7 8 4k A
the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the EERESEBHE ZIRITHRERTE-

geographical areas in which the Group operates.
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9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 9. FISHER (&)
The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated MEBERAXIHZIMEH BN T:
income statement represents:
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Current income tax BHIFTEMN
- Hong Kong profits tax —BEBNEH 5,937 6,790
- Overseas taxation —BINEIR 4,889 6,271
— Under/(over)-provision in —BEFEERE
prior years e/ (Fe) 2,065 (1,032)
Deferred income tax (Note 21) RIEFTISH (Kfat21) (1,576) (5,638)
Income tax expense Frigti & A 11,315 6,391

The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise

AEEBBIRAFHANEG N 2 HIE
HEEERANEEZHREMAEZ

using the taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows: BRI EE Y RN
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Profit before income tax BR P71 25 A i A 116,777 71,888
Calculated at a taxation rate of 17.5% & E17.5% (ZZTZT XN F:
(2006: 17.5%) 17.5%) st B 2 BB 20,436 12,580
Effect of different taxation rates in other H b ith [& T~ [F] £ &
geographical areas -2 - (4,453) (3,834)
Income not subject to tax BIART 2 WA (12,481) (3,907)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 2 % H
purposes 3,085 2,058
Unrecognised deferred income tax assets K2 2 EIEFTSH & E 3,165 926
Utilisation of previously unrecognised FERFERIARBEER
tax losses Z i (447) (310)
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BEFEEETRE, (F&R) 2,065 (1,032)
Others HAb (55) (90)
Income tax expense TSt & A 11,315 6,391
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10. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company is dealt with in the financial statements of
the Company to the extent of HK$2,834,000 (2006:
HK$49,461,000).

10.

ARAREBEFEAEGERR

ARNBIBREANEREZ AN ERE
B ATE(E% T A2,834,0008 7T (=
TE;NF 49,461,000 7T) ©

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE M. 8REF
(a) Basic (a) X
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing EXRGREAMBEARRNBIEREF
the profit attributable to equity holders of the B AR B AEARFHHE
Company by the weighted average number of WEBITE @R INEFHEE
ordinary shares in issue during the year. THE-
2007 2006
Profit attributable to equity holders AR A #EzE#FHH A
of the Company (HK$'000) R F (F38T) 105,462 65,497
Weighted average number of BETEBRDN
ordinary shares in issue w98 E 254,530,000 254,530,000
Basic earnings per share EXRGRER
(HK cents per share) (T RA) 41.4 25.7
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11. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) M. BRER (&)

(b) Diluted (b) #E
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by BEORANREME SN

adjusting the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The
Company has one category of dilutive potential
ordinary shares: share options. For the share
options, a calculation is made in order to
determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average annual market share price of the
Company’s shares) based on the monetary value
of the subscription rights attached to outstanding
share options. The number of shares calculated
as above is compared with the number of shares
that would have been issued assuming the exercise
of the share options.

BEEBERMEBE RECH
TEBERHIMEFIHAAE-
ARBE B EENELTER
R SR AR - SR AR R RATIE
REEFAMNORBEENEEE
B EBEERQAFE(BERAR
AR FEFEEME) AT EA
BRI BLE A E T A G E S
Befn 8B - B RER B BRETTEM
EEETHRMO B EH L&

2007

Profit attributable to equity holders RARIEZFEAA

of the Company (HK$'000) e (FAT) 105,462
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BETEBRSN

in issue nEFE A 254,530,000
Adjustments for share options AR ) B 2,650,000
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ AT E#HESHREF 2

for diluted earnings per share TR mETrHE 8 257,180,000
Diluted earnings per share BegRaT

(HK cents per share) (T RAEW) 41.0

No disclosure of diluted earnings per share for
the year ended 28 February 2006 has been made
as there was no potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding during the year.

HRARARREBE_TTRF -
AZ+N\BIEFEYEELRR]
BEERRRO FitEFRE
ZEEZEETRAN-

Z/IRABELL



107

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 1% 8 R M &

28 February 2007 —ZZtF=-HF =+ N\H

12. DIVIDENDS 12. BB
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHETT
Interim, paid, of HK1.5 cents EkFEREE “%@Hﬁ
(2006: HK3.0 cents) per 158 (ZFEE R
ordinary share 3.0%1) 3,818 7,636
Special, paid, of Nil ERIESHIN ¥
(2006: HK10.0 cents) TR E ﬁﬂﬁgﬂéfm
per ordinary share (ZZEZTRF:10.0%81) - 25,453
Final, proposed, of Nil BERRERPRETR
(2006: HK5.5 cents) per T AR =B AL
ordinary share (ZZEZERF:5.5%81) - 13,999
3,818 47,088

At a meeting held on 21 June 2007, the directors
resolved not to recommend a final dividend.
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13. DIRECTORS'’ 13.EENGAREBAEMS

EMOLUMENTS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

(a) EEM &

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments of each director for the year BE-_FTTLF A=+ NBLL

ended 28 February 2007 is set out below:

Basic salaries,

FE SEFHEETRZHMEHF

1540

T

housing
allowances,
other
allowances Employer's
and benefits contributions
in kind to pension
EAHM- Discretionary Share scheme
BEEHE>  bonuses option  BAEF
Fees  Hft2H  HERH scheme  FrEEZ Total
Name of director ESig #e RENAE 2L AREHE f# ay
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TR TR THER THER THER
Executive directors: HITEE:
Tang Wai Lam BEMR - 1,397 1,807 - 12 3,216
Ng Man Kit, Lawrence RRE - 1,496 667 815 12 2,990
Chung Chun Wah ERE - 137 226 815 12 1,790
Leung Kelvin Yiu Fai 2z
(appointed on (RZFE/E
1 August 2006) NA-REZ()
For the 7 months from RZZEXEN\A-H
1 August 2006 to 28 February E_TE4ECf
2007 in the capacity of ZTNBLEEEABER
Executive Director BUMES 100 759 9 314 7 1218
For the 5 months from RZZE/5=A—-H
1 March 2006 to 31 July 2006 EZRTELR
in the capacity of =t+-BiERERHER
Financial Controller REHAL - 508 - 177 5 690
Non-executive director: FHIEE:
Lee Kwan Hung E3) 65 - - 219 - 284
Independent non-executive directors: BV F#H{TEE:
Lee Kin Sang FEE 65 - - 219 - 284
Chan Ka Sing, Tommy BxE 65 - - 219 - 284
Ng Chun Chuen, David RER 65 - - 109 - 174
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 13.EERESRNEEAEHNES (B)

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEM < (&)

The emoluments of each director for the year
ended 28 February 2006 is set out below:

Basic salaries,

housing
allowances,
other
allowances
and benefits
in kind
EREH-
FEEE:
Fees At
Name of director ESftA we RENHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FEL
Executive directors: HITEE:
Tang Wai Lam HEM - 1,397
Tang Keung Lam Ef o8 - 1,309
(resigned on (RZZZnf
30 November 2005) +-A=1BEHF)
Ng Man Kit, Lawrence RE# - 1,439
Chung Chun Wah ERE - 588
Non-executive director: FHTEE:
Lee Kwan Hung £33 65 -
Independent non-executive BUHEHT
directors: EZ:
Lee Kin Sang FEE 65 -
Chan Ka Sing, Tommy LEL: 65 -
Ng Chun Chuen, David RER 65 -

No directors of the Company waived any
emoluments and no emoluments were paid by
the Group to any of the directors of the Company
as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

L/IRABELL

HE-TTAF-A-+/BL
FE EEEZHEENT

Discretionary
bonuses
BMEEM
ZTEH
HK$'000
TER

1,506
1,130

Employer's
contributions
to pension
scheme
RINEA
iEEE
f3%
HK$'000
TET

Total
HK$'000
TET

2,915
2,448

2,237
731

65

65
65
65

ARAIZESTTEREEME
A £R B 77 8 32 S B 2 T AN 2 A
EMES EREEMBEAEE
IR RBERR 2 EEE-



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LR

28 February 2007 —ZZtF=-HF =+ N\H

13. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include four
(2006: three) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented in Note (a)
above. The emoluments payable to the remaining

13.EERSREBAEME (&)

(b) BBREHFAL

AREEAEEANLLZHMA
TEREE (ZETREF: =4)
EX HM2 D HN L XM @)
oMo BEer—R (ZETNEF:
M) Ze#H AL ZBME 5w

one (2006: two) individual during the year are as T
follows:
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Basic salaries, housing allowances, EX#FHH E=E
other allowances and benefits EREY
in kind A &= 870 2,092
Discretionary bonuses B 15 3 2 TEAL 245 182
Share option scheme RIS E 454 -
Employer’s contributions to RKAE A 5T 2
pension scheme B EH 12 24
1,581 2,298
The emoluments fell within the following bands: TR E BRI T
Number of individuals
Emolument bands B < 48 51 A
HK$ 2007 2006
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 1,000,001 - 1,500,000 - 2
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 1,500,001 - 2,000,000 1 -

None of the highest paid individuals of the Group
waived any emoluments and no emoluments were
paid by the Group to any of such individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office.

AEBzHRSFATLENEL
Me MAKRETENHE T
EAZEAL EREREMBERN
SEZGEMRBHERZEE-
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 MPE-BBERKRE

Group
&8
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office
improve- equipment
ments Fi Motor  Plant and
Buildings RE KER  vehicles machinery Total
BT NEEE BAZRE RE BERRE 8%
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER THEx TiEx TiEx TER TER

As at 1 March 2005 R-BERE=f-H
Cost BAE 21554 52,408 20,685 3,823 2,079 100,749
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (4,184)  (40955)  (16,417)  (3,581)  (1,680)  (66,817)
Net hook value Rm¥E 17,370 11,453 4,268 242 599 33,932
Year ended 28 February 2006 BE-BERE-R

“tNBLEE
Opening net book value ENREFE 17,370 11,453 4,268 242 599 33,932
Exchange differences ERZEH - (6) 27 4 13 38
Additions NE - 20351 2,924 1,276 1834 26,385
Disposals e - (357) (7) - (27) (391)
Depreciation ik (837)  (15736)  (1,740) (191) (209)  (18,713)
Closing net book value ERREEE 16,533 15,705 5,472 1331 2,210 41,251
As at 28 February 2006 R=BBREZR

—t+NH
Cost RAE 21554 67,193 23,611 5,063 4130 121,551
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (5021)  (51488)  (18,139)  (3,732)  (1,920)  (80,300)
Net book value REZE 16,533 15,705 5,472 1331 2,210 41,251
Year ended 28 February 2007 BE-Z23tHZ]

“tNBLEE
Opening net book value ENREEE 16,533 15,705 5,472 1,331 2210 41,251
Exchange differences BERESE - (42) 50 13 83 104
Additions RE - 18,588 2,022 638 157 21,405
Disposals e - (1.272) ) - - (1,274)
Depreciation e (837)  (18,195) (1,980 (512) (324)  (21,848)
Closing net book value ERREFE 15696 14,784 5,562 1,470 2126 39,638

111 | ZZIRABELL



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 1% 8 R M &

28 February 2007 —ZZtF=-HF =+ N\H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

14. ME-HRRRE (@)

Group
%8
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office
improve- equipment
ments Motor  Plant and
BE #£8L  vehicles machinery Total
NXZE BLERHB AE BERRR k]
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
Tér  ThArT  ThExr  TExr  ThExn
As at 28 February 2007 R=2Bt%=f
~tN\A
Cost RAE 21,554 76,354 25,754 4,463 4,459 132,584
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (5858)  (61,570)  (20,192)  (2,993)  (2,333)  (92,946)
Net book value REFE 15,696 14,784 5,562 1,470 2,126 39,638

As at 28 February 2007, certain banking facilities were
secured on land and buildings for the value of

HK$10,396,000 (2006: HK$10,856,000).

15.

R-ZBELE A=+ /B BEARX
EEABHAEZETROTEEERA
T REFEERFAEDDB
10,396,000 T (Z T FT X F -
10,856,000/ 7T ) °

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REWME
Group
&8
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FH& T
At beginning of year R EH 53,448 61,448
Fair value gains (Note 7) NEEWEE (HiE7) 3,012 -
Disposals & - (8,000)
At end of year R EF K 56,460 53,448

Investment properties were revalued at 28 February
2007 on the basis of their open market value by DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an independent firm of
chartered surveyors, employed by the Group.

BREMER-_ZTZELF_A=-1TN
Bl ASEBENE SRS
HERTERARRAFAMEREE
HEITE
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group's interests in investment properties are held
outside Hong Kong with lease period between 10 to

50 years.

15. REWE (#)

AEBGCERENE 2R HERE
MM E+ER +SFHmHEE-

Details of investment properties are as follows: REMEFBWT
Usage
A&
Held in Mainland China under medium term leases: R B RPES R EHEY S
Unit Nos. 101, 102 and 103, 1st level, East Block, PEARAMBEERE Commercial
International Commercial Building, Jiabin Road/ RN A K S
Renmin South Road, Luohu District, Shenzhen, (RER)BREEERE
Guangdong Province, RE—E101 102K
the People’s Republic of China 10358 B iz
16. LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 16. HELT R T h{F A RE
Group
£8
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
At beginning of year R EH 17,704 19,709
Amortisation (Note 6) iH (Mfate) (2,007) (2,005)
At end of year EF R 15,697 17,704

L/IRABELL
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16. LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS (continued) 16.

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use
rights represent prepaid operating lease payments and
their net book values are analysed as follows:

HELT R tHhERE (&)

AREEREEL WML HMEREZ
ERERNEEHETE RREF
BoMmT:

Group
£
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
In Hong Kong, held on: EEBRFE:
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years —T+ERTEHE 1,218 1,248
Outside Hong Kong, held on: EBINGE
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years —TERTFHE 12,834 13,166
— Leases of less than 10 years —DPRTFEHE 1,645 3,290
15,697 17,704
17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BB E
Group
£
2007 2006
Patents and licenses BRI R R HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FAT
At beginning of year REH 13,321 2,000
Additions Bl 6,766 18,083
Amortisation (Note 6) By (Mite) (5,182) (6,762)
At end of year M EF K 14,905 13,321
//IRABELL
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

18.

Intangible assets represent license rights on branded
products up to 2010. Additions during the year
represent capitalisation of minimum license fees
payable, based on a discount rate equal to the Group’s
weighted average borrowing rate of 5.11%
(2006: 4.77%) at the date of inception.

Amortisation of HK$5,182,000 (2006: HK$4,762,000)
is included in cost of sales and Nil (2006:
HK$2,000,000) in administrative expenses.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS
DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

17. B EE (&)

18.

EBREERKEAEE T TF|tY
mEERKER-EAFERERZ
MBS RERMNERBERE AL
YRR BBERBREESESRASEE
ZIMEFHEERS 1% (TN
Fi477%) 2R BE AL

BEN FNEE 5,182,000 T (ZEE X
F:4,762,0008 70) st AHE KA
& (= FZ X% :2,000,0008
TC) AT ATTHERA-

B B 2 ] IR % FE W BfY B 2 R K
5

Company
AT

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Unlisted shares, at cost FEET R R AE 69,254 69,254
Amount due from a subsidiary FEUW BT B~ A1 ERIB 8,344 -
77,598 69,254

As at 28 February 2006 and 2007, the amounts due
from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand, except for an amount due from
a subsidiary of HK$8,344,000 (2006: Nil) which is not
repayable within one year. Details of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries as at 28 February 2007 are set
out on pages 137 to 141.
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19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 10. & DRI RER

Movements of interest in an associate are as follows: BENA R B2HNT:
Group
£
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FABT
At beginning of year R EH 59,343 93,399
Exchange differences MEHZE5 (436) 231
Dividends received B AR B - (54,000)
Share of profit JE 15 5 A 58,002 19,713
Other equity movements (Note 29) EmrEmEE (H:£29) 747,480 -
At end of year RS 864,389 59,343
The Group’s associate has a financial accounting period REBHEANTZE&EEHd A5+ =
of 31 December which is not coterminous with the A=+—H EAREFEEE AW
Group. — o
The financial information of the Group’s associate is REBVHBE NG ZHBEERNT:
as follows:
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FET
Total assets BREE 2,361,013 163,143
Total liabilities BmaE 300 -
Revenues WA - 429,695
Profit for the year NEFEm A 193,339 65,367

Best Quality Investments Limited (“Best Quality”), a
company incorporated in Samoa, is the Group's
associate in which the Group holds 30% interests.
Details of Best Quality at 28 February 2007 are set
out on page 142.

7 BE FZ o5 5T i AK 32 B9 Best Quality
Investments Limited ( [ Best Quality] )
EAREBEIE30%E 0@ 2 B E QA
Best QualitylR —ETZE+F A _‘i—
NBZHBHEHNRE1428 -

Z/IRABELL
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19.

20.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Pursuant to an agreement dated 30 June 2006, Belle
International Holdings Limited (“Belle International”),
then an associate of Best Quality, agreed to acquire
100% interest in Fullbest Investments Limited and its
subsidiaries by the issuance of new ordinary shares of
Belle International. As a result of the new issue, Best
Quality's equity interest in Belle International was
diluted from approximately 20.3% to approximately
17.7%. Accordingly, Belle International became an
available-for-sale financial asset of Best Quality, which
recorded a gain on deemed disposal of an associate
of approximately HK$113,662,000. The Group's share
of this gain on deemed disposal amounted to
approximately HK$34,099,000.

Based on internal valuation performed by the directors
of the Company, the Group's share of the fair value
of the available-for-sale financial asset of Best Quality
as at 28 February 2007 was approximately
HK$864,389,000.

NON-CURRENT DEPOSITS

Non-current deposits of the Group represented
deposits paid for the acquisition of properties. The
Group had agreed with the property developer for
the refund of the whole deposits and accordingly, the
deposits were classified as current assets as at 28
February 2007.

L/IRABELL

19.

20.

BE QTS (4

)ﬂlllll

BE—MHR_ZETFA=TH
7] X H 1 3% ° Belle International
Holdings Limited ([ Belle
International] ) (& Fs /& Best Quality
2 — A& QA A EWEEFullbest
Investments Limited & E i B 2 & &Y
% #F# %5 - X 18 fBelle International
MERREO TR BHITHARMD
1%  Best Quality{f Belle International

MR ERED203% 1 EEE
49 17.7%-° & It #8 & #b - Belle

InternationalfX /4 Best Quality®) aJ £t
& B 7% 8 E © T Best Quality8k 1543
YE BB & A F)m M 49113,662,000
BT - AEERELEZEELHERNR
#734,099,0007% JT °

BBEARFEFETRITMG AE
& &/ Best Quality —ZEZT+F =
A+ N \BzA#fHENBEE 2
N F{E A #1864,389,000/% JT °

ERBRE

AEEBZIERDIZCIREBEEMERN
St zET®e $'¥laéﬁiﬂﬂF%‘J§ﬁ
HERENEHENEE TR _ZEZT+
FZAZHNRB ZZRSHEIABR
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21. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 21 ELEFBEH
The movement in deferred income tax assets and EAFEHRAEREMEHEE R
liabilities during the year, without taking into BEL B AER — B E R K H
consideration the offsetting of balances within the R BB

same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Group
%8
Tax depreciation Provision for long
Deferred income tax assets allowance Tax losses services payments Others Total
ELHEHEE RERERHE ik RERBERE Hip ag

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tér TEr TEn TEx TER TEr TEx TEr TEx TEx

At beginning of year REA] 1,79 1,754 4,366 - 287 465 1,516 316 7965 2535
Recognised in the ERERER
income statement 95 42 (549) 4,366 (92)  (178) 2481 1200 1935 5430
At end of year RER 1891  179% 3817 4366 195 287 3997 1516 9900 7,965
Group
%8
Tax depreciation Revaluation of
Deferred income tax liabilities allowance investment properties Total
BLfMEHER REFERHA REMEEMR ag
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TER TAL TER TAL TERL TAL

At beginning of year REA 1,338 1,546 - - 1,338 1,546
Recognised in the ERERER

income statement 73 (208) 286 - 359 (208)
At end of year REHE 1,411 1338 286 - 1,697 1338
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are expected EBEFMEHEENBERISERB
to be settled after more than 12 months. +-EABES-
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21.

22.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that realisation of
the related tax benefit through the future taxable
profits is probable. The Group has unrecognised tax
losses of HK$8,216,000 (2006: HK$7,424,000) to carry
forward against future taxable income. The tax losses
have no expiry date (2006: tax losses of HK$111,000
would expire in year 2010 and tax losses of
HK$7,313,000 had no expiry date).

21. EEFTEH (8)

BIEFTSTEE T A BB B A
zn A] 37 38 R oK FE ER Bl 0m A1) B 3R i Bt
it s BB ERR - ANEE A RE
188,216,000 7T (ZEZTRF:
7,424,000/ JT) 0] 45 8 DA 85 K 2R
ERW A L FRBYEHR (ZF
NE 111,000 T BB ZZ
—ZFF|HM 7,313,000 T K 18
Al EARR ) o

INVENTORIES 22. 78
Group
£E
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Raw materials R4 2,873 4,317
Work in progress £ & 420 124
Finished goods BN oh 211,660 185,518
214,953 189,959
Less: Provision for inventories T E R (32,901) (35,811)
182,052 154,148

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and
included in cost of sales amounted to approximately
HK$354,336,000 (2006: HK$337,484,000).

L/IRABELL
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. EWER X
Group
&8
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
Trade receivables JrE I BR 3R 81,284 70,275
Less: Provision for impairment of R FE W BR 3R
receivables N RIERE =] (638) (44)
80,646 70,231

The carrying amount of trade receivables approximates

its fair value.

Other than cash and credit card sales, the majority of
the Group’s credit sales is on a credit term of 30 — 60
days. As at 28 February 2007, the ageing analysis of

trade receivables was as follows:

FEW AR 2 FREE B E N FEBK -

BRESREARESEN XEEXE
ZIEEHEERE-—MAE=TEX
+H R _EZLEF_A=-+N\B"
EWERR ZBREBE DT T

Group
&8

2007 2006
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHETT
0 - 30 days =TEx=1+H 66,785 68,265
31 - 60 days =+—%X+H 2,540 1,372
61 — 90 days AT—ZA+H 1,638 149
Over 90 days HiE L+ A 9,683 445
80,646 70,231
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. BWAR (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables REBSNEWERRZREENA T
are denominated in the following currencies: B REA
Group
% H

2007 2006
HK$000 HK$'000
THET TET
Hong Kong dollars BT 37,307 34,721
Renminbi AR 39,481 33,587
Euro (S 80 51
Macau Pataca BP9 T 888 324
New Taiwan dollars e 2,890 1,548
80,646 70,231
During the year, the Group recognised a loss of EARAEEHB R KNE @R
HK$864,000 (2006: Nil) for the impairment of its trade 28640008 T (BT NE |) 2

receivables. JiE Wi BR ORI (B R e 1R -

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24, BEeRESZEY
Group Company
58 NG

2007 2006 2007 2006

HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000
TERT TAL TRERT TAL

Cash at bank and in hand RITRE L &R 106,183 108,836 175 145
Short-term bank deposits %2 HiSB 1717 X 2,063 6,055 - -
108,246 114,891 175 145
Denominated in: A3 &8 A8
Hong Kong dollars BT 51,085 70,861 175 145
Renminbi AR 38,161 31,383 - -
Euro B 7 8,981 4,023 = -
Macau Pataca BT 5,505 7,085 = -
New Taiwan dollars ek 4,496 1,523 - -
US dollars Y 18 16 — -
108,246 114,891 175 145
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits
was 3.89% (2006: 3.92%); these deposits have an
average maturity of 29 days (2006: 29 days).

The Group's cash and cash equivalents denominated
in Renminbi are deposited with banks in the PRC. The
conversion of these Renminbi denominated balances
into foreign currencies and the remittance of funds
out of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC

Government.

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward foreign exchange contracts

EHINE S K

2. BERBREeEEY (&)

RBRTERNERFEA3.89%
(ZZTZTRF:3.92%)  WEFHEF
R FEHESHEA-_TAKXK(ZZEE
NEFEZFAKR) e

REBZARERELRASFEY
RETFRHBEEANRT BIHFEA
REZHEBHBRINERELES
B rp B 5 O - 7838 IR o B IR P AR
v SN EE & il B9 R BRI K AR

25. T €M I A

Group

&=
2007 2006
HK$000 HK$'000
FTHET FBT

= 80

26. TRADE PAYABLES

As at 28 February 2007, the ageing analysis of trade

payables was as follows:

0 - 30 days
31 - 60 days
61 — 90 days

Over 90 days

BeENATH

26. EERR

RZZETZ+F_A_+\B BN

RZBRE DM
Group
£H
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET THETT
29,367 37,668
4,929 477
2,220 172
12,150 3,917
48,666 42,234
Z/IRABELL
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26. TRADE PAYABLES (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables

26. R BRFR (M)

AREBOEMNRKZREENK N

are denominated in the following currencies: B REA
Group
&8
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FAT
Hong Kong dollars BT 13,419 12,194
Renminbi AR 25,634 19,077
US dollars ETT 6,422 9,036
Euro [BX 78 2,589 1,099
New Taiwan dollars e 602 828
48,666 42,234

The carrying amount of trade payables approximates
its fair value.

27. SHORT-TERM BANK BORROWINGS

Unsecured 4 4 1

MR REERE A FEMBL-

27. EHIRITREE

Group
£H
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THETT
25,008 47,817

As at 28 February 2007, the effective interest rate per
annum of borrowings was 5.11% (2006: 4.77 %).

L/IRABELL
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27. SHORT-TERM BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

27. EHIRITIEE (B)

An analysis of the carrying amount of borrowings by BECEREERBEEREE TN
type and by currency is as follows: T

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$'000

THER FAT

Hong Kong dollars at floating rates S R B 6,334 5,666

Renminbi at floating rates ARBZEBN X 18,674 42,151

25,008 47,817

The carrying amount of borrowings approximates its

EEZREEREAFEMELY-

fair value.
28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. A
Ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each
BREE1BT
ZEBR
No. of
shares HK$'000
B 8 H TAET
Authorised: ETE R
As at 28 February 2006 and 2007 RZFETRF_A 1,000,000,000 100,000
ZTNBRZZEZTLF
—_AZ+)\H
Issued and fully paid: BETRZEHTRAE:
As at 28 February 2006 and 2007 RZZETRF_A 254,530,000 25,453
ZTNBRZZEELF
—_AZ+)\H
L/IRABELL
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Share options

The share option scheme was approved by the
shareholders of the Company on 29 December 2004
and has a life of 10 years until 28 December 2014,
but any options then outstanding will continue to be
exercisable. On 3 April 2006, share options with rights
to subscribe for a total of 21,520,000 shares were
granted to certain directors and employees of the

Group.

Movements in the share options outstanding and their
related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

28. B (@)

RN —_EENF+ A=
THEK&ARRAIZRERE BAEX
HAE+FEE_ZT—NUEF+_HZ
T NA\B - BZEINA] BT EM W
RITEHNRRE-R=_ZTZTFOA
CHETREER T A HK
21,520,0000% f% 17 #Y 52 A% 4

AR EARTEZ RBERE MEE

B8 2 IR 1T (E ) E B 51 40

Weighted
average
exercise  Number of
price  underlying
per share shares
=% 16 B
FIGTEE R 8B
HK$
& T
Granted 2.875 21,520,000
Forfeited 2.875 (1,240,000)
As at 28 February 2007 R—ZZEZELtF-_F=+/\H 2.875 20,280,000
—TE+F_A_+N\B AR

As at 28 February 2007, all the share options were
not exercisable.

L/IRABELL
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Share options (continued)

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have
the following expiry dates and exercise prices:

28. B (@)

R (18)

IR RIS R R 1T 2 R AR A B B8
BRITEEMT:

Number of
Exercise  underlying
price shares
per share A
BRITEE R 8B
HK$
& T
2 April 2012 —E——_FmMAZ-H 2.875 4,000,000
2 April 2014 —ET-WEMACZH 2.875 16,280,000

2.875 20,280,000

The fair value of the share options granted during the
year ended 28 February 2007 amounted to
approximately HK$17,286,000. It was estimated as at
the date of grant by using a binominal model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. The significant assumptions
and inputs used in the valuation model are as follows:

Expected volatility: 40%, based on historical
volatility of the Company’s
shares for the period from 4
April 2001 to 3 April 2006 and
expected volatility of the retail
industry

Risk-free interest rate: 4.54% — 4.58% per annum,
based on the yields of Hong
Kong Exchange Fund Notes

EHZEz-_ZTT+tF_A_-_+/\BLt
FEHBRN RERBRENRTER
#)17,286,0008 7T - RAX A A F1H
TEBEERE A =B | SEEE
BRAFE ERZEE T RERBRED
BRI F - EANBREZREAER
MRS T

TEHEIRIE: 40%  RIBEARAAR
ME—_ZZ—FMWA
MAZE —ZTTNFN
BA=ZHHBE&NBERK
12 A R T E A T8 H
&

mRERAE: N X G F 454%F

4.58% ' IRIEBH B INE
AEeBEHNEXR

Z/IRABELL
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Share options (continued)

Expected life of the  Options expected to be
share options: exercised when the share price
is 1.5 times of the option

exercise price

Expected dividend 4%
yield:

Binominal model is subject to certain fundamental
limitations because of the subjective nature of and
uncertainty relating to the assumptions and inputs to
the model as well as certain inherent limitations of
the model itself. Any changes in the above
assumptions or inputs may materially affect the fair
value estimation.

The fair value of the share options granted during the
year ended 28 February 2007, amounting to
approximately HK$17,286,000, is to be recognised as
an employee benefit expense of the Group according
to the vesting conditions. An amount of approximately
HK$8,344,000 (2006: Nil) was charged as employee
benefit expenses for the year ended 28 February 2007.

On 6 March 2007, share options with rights to
subscribe for a total of 5,140,000 shares were granted
to certain employees with an exercise price set at
HK$5.896 per share (expiry date: 2 April 2014).

L/IRABELL

28. B (@)

AR KE ()

RBENTE ERESBRETE
HiEH: Em15EK RRE

B TTE
BHIRE 4%
Yo g &

[—THEHA I AEEEEA DT ETE
KRB A E 8 MEE T SRR
EEXEA AREBXRNEETFTRE
BRR-WE Ll 2 BEHIFALIR
FAEE HEHATEZAETER
BERAMFTE-

BRESBGRT 822 FTtF_A
“HTNBLEFEREZRRENA
F{E#) A17,286,000/8 7T I B #ER
AEERMNER BHE-_TTLF=
AZ+/\HLEFE 48,344,000/ 7T
(ZEZERF B EXHAEERT
BH-

R_ZEZLtF=ZAH ETEEE
BT A SR%5.896/8 THITEEITEE
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29. RESERVES 29. f#f&
(a) Group (a) &E
Available-
for-sale
financial
Capital assets Cumulative
redemption reserve Share  translation
Share reserve (Capital it option reserve  Retained
Premium  EARE  reseve  HEHME  reseve  ZHER  earnings Total
Ri&E fE  ERfG  EERG TRERG e REEH 8%
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
T#n ThR T#n ThR T#n ThR T#n T#n
Balance asat T March 2006 R -EERE
ZR-Bu&# 110,650 380 9 - - 1,263 300,226 412,610
Currency translation EHERZE
differences - - - - - 2,795 - 2,795
Profit for the year FERRH - - - - - - 105462 105462
Share option scheme AMEE
- value of services -2 EE - - - - 8,344 - - 8,304
Share of fair value EERERA
gain of an associate LTEks
(Note 19) (Biit19) - - - 147480 - - - 741480
2006 Final dividend paid “EENFERAERE - - - - - - (13999)  (13,999)
2007 Interim dividend paid “EELERRPERE - - - - - - (3,818) (3,818)
Balance as at RZBBtE
28 February 2007 gk JIN:P2 5 110,650 380 of 747,480 8,344 4058 387871 1,258,874
//IRABELL
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29. RESERVES (continued)

(@) Group (continued)

29. f# & (8

(a) &H (&)

Available-
for-sale
financial
Capital assets Cumulative
redemption reserve Share translation
Share Teserve Capital I option reserve  Retained
Premum  EAEE reseve  HEHH reseve  ZEEX eamings Total
RAEE Bl ERHE  AERE JRERE BE  REEN e
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HKS'000
T T T T T T T T
Balance as at 1 March 2005~ R=EFZ1%
ZR-Bu&# 110,650 380 91 - - (135) 284,617 395,603
Currency translation EHERZE
differences - - - - - 139 - 139
Profit for the year RER&A - - - - - - 65,497 65,497
2005 Final dividend paid “ERRFERAERE - - - - - - (16,799)  (16,799)
2006 Interim dividend paid “EENERRPERE - - - - - - (7636) (7.636)
2006 Special dividend paid “EENEDRNRIRE - - - - - - (25453)  (25,453)
Balance as at RZFENF
28 February 2006 ZRZTN\BzER 110,650 380 91 - - 1,263 300,226 412,610
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28 February 2007 —ZZtF=-HF =+ N\H

29. RESERVES (continued) 29. & (&)

(b) Company (b) &7
Capital
redemption Share
Share reserve option  Retained

premium  EAEE  reserve  earnings Total

R &E ffE ARERE REEN oy

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

TEn  TEr iz ThEr TEx
Balance as at 1 March 2006 RZZEREZRA-H &R 110,650 380 - 28,650 139,680
Profit for the year REFET - - - 2,834 2,834
Share option scheme ELCHE
~ value of services -R%BE - - 8,344 - 8,344
2006 Final dividend paid “EERFERRERE - - - (13,999)  (13,999)
2007 Interim dividend paid “EELEERPERE - - - (3.818)  (3.818)
Balance as at 28 February 2007 RW=-ZBtE-A-tN\Az&# 110,650 380 8,344 13667 133,041
Balance as at 1 March 2005 RZBTRE=A-A2&H 110,650 380 - 29077 140,107
Profit for the year RERRT - - - 49461 49461
2005 Final dividend paid “ETREERRERE - - - (16799)  (16,799)
2006 Interim dividend paid “EEREERPERE - - - (7,636) (7,636
2006 Special dividend paid “EERERRERIRE - - - (25453)  (25453)
Balance as at 28 February 2006  RZFERF-AZFT\H 28 110,650 380 - 28650 139,680
//RABELL | 130
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— Increase in other receivables,
deposits and prepayments
— Increase/(decrease) in trade

30. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 0. REFZBHELE RS
Group
58
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Operating profit 7 & A 60,974 54,496
Adjustments for: o
— Depreciation of property, plant s/ ER
and equipment e 21,848 18,713
— Amortisation of leasehold land and —MHETH R AR
land use rights 8 2,007 2,005
— Amortisation of intangible assets — B EESE 5,182 6,762
— Loss on disposal of property, plant —HEWE HBRRE
and equipment & 18 1,243 391
— Loss on disposal of an investment —HEREMEEBE
property - 66
— (Write-back of)/provision for —-REFE (BRE) #HE
inventory obsolescence (2,910) 598
— Provision for impairment of — R YRR BB B B
receivables 864 -
— Write-back of provision for -~ RERE BB 2ED
long service payments (525) (1,017)
— Share-based payments in relation — BB TESEKEEW
to share options granted to AR HE 2 ARR 0 7 A Tt
directors and employees KRN 8,344 -
— Interest income — M E WA (920) (917)
— Fair value gains on —KREMEDNLQTE
investment properties W & (3,012) -
93,095 81,097
Changes in working capital: LEEeE
— Decrease in non-current rental —JEnBEER R D
deposits 4,992 960
— Increase in inventories —FEE le] (22,190) (18,649)
— (Increase)/decrease in trade — MR R (38 n) R
receivables (10,807) 2,442

—HMERR Be R
R A BRI (8,296) (9,876)
— R BRI, G )

payables 6,432 (10,039)
— Increase/(decrease) in other — H At T R AT

payables and accrued charges BRAKM CRL) 6,202 (6,900)
- Decrease/(increase) in derivative —TEEmIARY

financial instruments (3% h0) 80 (342)
Cash generated from operations KEETHEELEZR® 69,508 38,693
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30. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued)

31.

In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds

from disposal of property, plant and equipment and

an investment property comprise:

Eiﬁ/\

30. FEEFBHELAZHRE (M)

:'E/MLEEEW ﬁ’E%% *A@
REEREMENRERBHE:

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Net book value of property, M- Hes REFE
plant and equipment (Note 14) REFE (/7(7‘3274) 1,274 391
Loss on disposal of property, HEMZE HEREE
plant and equipment & 18 (1,243) (391)
Proceed from disposal of property, HEMZE K REE
plant and equipment P15 31 -
Net book value of an investment KEMER@FE
property (Note 15) (Kfit15) - 8,000
Loss on disposal of an investment HEREMEEE
property - (66)
Proceed from disposal of HEREME
an investment property AT 15 - 7,934
COMMITMENTS 31. &iE

(a) Capital commitments

(a) BEXEE

As at 28 February 2007, the Group had capital
commitment contracted but not provided for in
respect of leasehold improvements and office

equipment amounting to approximately
HK$1,766,000 (2006: HK$571,000).

R-_EE+HF-_A=-+NHB &
ESEAEBREEIRABRAETRE
BRI EREBE 2 ERERERL
1,766,000 L (ZEZ X F:
571,000 JT) °

Z/IRABELL
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28 February 2007 —ZZtF=-HF =+ N\H

31. COMMITMENTS (continued)
(b) Commitments under operating leases

As at 28 February 2007, the Group had future
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of land and
buildings as follows:

31. &I’ (&)

(b) REHERE

RZEZEEF_HA-+\H &K
SEE T REF A HEELE
MEBESXNZRARREEES BT
U

Group
&8

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$'000

THER FAT

Not later than one year e —F 140,946 165,677
Later than one year and not later BB —FETBBARF

than five years 83,550 146,423

224,496 312,100

The payments of operating lease rentals of certain
retail outlets are based on the higher of a
minimum guaranteed rental and a sales level
based rental. The minimum guaranteed rental has
been used to arrive at the above commitments.

L/IRABELL
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 1% 8 R M &

28 February 2007 —ZZtF=-HF =+ N\H

31. COMMITMENTS (continued)

31.

(c) Commitments on royalty payments

As at 28 February 2007, the Group had future
aggregate minimum royalty payments under non-
cancellable royalty agreement as follows:

EIE ()
(c) ERBEXEE

RZEBEE+F-_HA-_+N B XK
SERETITREENEHZEA
YR ZARKEENB LW
T

Group
£H
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Not later than one year e —F 16,046 9,649
Later than one year and not later BB —FETBBERF
than five years 21,195 21,791
37,241 31,440
32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30 BHAERXE
Key management compensation TEEEBAEME
Group
&8
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FAT
Salaries and other short-term employee ¥ & K EM G HES
benefits & A 7.547 8,546
Employer’s contributions to RKTE A E 2
pension scheme fEEH® 43 45
Share-based payments VAR 1 7% E- 1 1) 7 3K 2,710 -
10,300 8,591
//IRABELL
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Bt 1% 8 R M &

28 February 2007 —ZZtF=-HF =+ N\H

33. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

(@) On 6 March 2007, share options with rights to
subscribe for a total of 5,140,000 shares were
granted to certain employees with an exercise
price set at HK$5.896 per share (expiry date: 2

April 2014) (Note 28).

(b) On 16 March 2007, the National People’s Congress
approved the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
People’s Republic of China (the new “CIT Law").
The new CIT Law changes the corporate income
tax rate to 25% with effect from 1 January 2008.
The new CIT Law also provides for preferential
tax rates, tax incentives for prescribed industries
and activities, grandfathering provisions as well
as determination of taxable profit. As at the date
that these financial statements are approved for
issue, detailed measures concerning these items
have yet to be issued by the State Council.
Consequently, the Group is not in a position to
assess the impact, if any, to the carrying value of
deferred income tax assets and liabilities as at 28
February 2007. The Group will continue to
evaluate the impact as more detailed regulations

are announced.

(c) On 1 May 2007, Best Quality declared an interim
dividend, which was paid on 8 June 2007. The
dividend of HK$21,000,000 was received by the

Group.

(d) On 23 May 2007, the shares of Belle International
were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Based on the
public offer price of HK$6.2 per share, the Group’s
share of fair value of the available-for-sale financial
asset of Best Quality was approximately

HK$2,335,400,000.

L/IRABELL
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R_ZE+F=AH &TE
EER T UAEM5.896/8 TTHITT
FEITE A H£5,140,0008% i% 17
R E (BB —T—MF
IMA=H) (M7E28) °

R-ZEZ+E=A+ B &2H
ARREREBB(FEARH
MBEEMRERE) G
FREMEY]) K EMEH
EYBEERSHREEBIEE
25% ' TR —_ZEZENF—H—H
REAE RN e 3 (R RT3 TE) 7] BA
BEEEXENREHREEERHR X
MUWEE TEBBCRERT
FE-RAFBmEIERZER:
B4R ERAmEBLESTE
B Ao B L AR EREERT
H_ZTT+F A -+ N\HZE
EREREERBGERAEZF
2 (WE) AEEBREFRZE
MAmME #E— A HETE-

RZZEEZ+FH A — H - Best
QualityE M K H BAAR B - I 70
—EEEFANANBEIFoAE
2 U 21,000,000/ 7T & f%
B o

R-_ZEELtFRA_-_+=8"
Belle International 8 i% 15 £ & /&
BEXZHBR AR ERLEM
BEARAZBEETRKRG6 2B T
N £ 8 & {5 Best Quality 2 7] fft
EMBEENLRFEAEY
2,335,400,000/% Jr °
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33. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE (continued)

(e) On 18 June 2007, Best Quality declared a
distribution in specie to its shareholders of all
1,250,000,000 shares in Belle International (“Belle
Shares”) held by it under which the Group has an
entitlement of 375,000,000 shares. On 21 June
2007, the directors of the Company recommended
to the shareholders for approval, conditional upon
receipt of the Belle Shares from Best Quality, a
distribution in specie of 71 Belle Shares for every
50 shares in the Company held by the
shareholders.

B.EEHERERE (8D

(e)

RZEELFXATNANR"
Best QualityE M REZEEEMIFH
FT & 1,250,000,0000% Belle
International &1 ( [Bellef& 17 |)
THRR Bl AEE ] ESIK
375,000,000%Bellef% 7 o A — &
TEtFRAZ+—HB ARAZ
ExgREaRREME EXAEE
i Best Qualityds BX A Belle % 15 #Y
BHET mMFEEE0lAR AR
MZRREY D IK71HBellefik

,f/'\ °
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GROUP STRUCTURE
KERB

As at 28 February 2007, the Company had the following
principal subsidiaries and an associate:

Name

DREH

Subsidiaries

B 2

Mirabell Group Limited*

Artigiano Footwear
Limited*

Fast Grow Limited

REARRAA

Fiorucci (HK) Limited

137 | Z/iRABELL

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and kind of
legal entity
8B it B
REEBERER

British Virgin
Islands
("BVI")

REBRUHES

Macau

R FT

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
&%

Principal
activities and
place of
operation
TEXK
RE& R

Investment
holding in BVI

EHEBREX
HENRE
REBRRER

Retailing of
footwear in
Macau

RPN E

BERTEXRDG

Property holding
in Mainland China
T B A B
REYE

Retailing of
footwear in
Hong Kong

EEBRSE
BERTERK

R-ZEE+F A=+ N\B AARES
UTEETERB AR LEHE QR

Particulars

of issued
share capital/
registered
capital
BRI/
R A

Ordinary
US$48,000
EEels
48,000% 7T

Ordinary
MOP30,000
EEels
30,0002 7T

Ordinary
HK$2
EEels
2B TT

Ordinary
HK$10,000
gl
10,0007 7T

Interest held

BB AR
Direct Indirect
BEE GE:3
% %
100 -
- 100
- 100
- 100



GROUP STRUCTURE
KERB

Place of Particulars
incorporation/ Principal of issued
establishment activities and share capital/
and kind of place of registered Interest held
legal entity operation capital FE 46 IR A 4 22
Name HM BRI E O FEER B®1T/ Direct Indirect
NCIRCE REEBRERN NREE®HH AR A BE# e
% %
Subsidiaries (continued)
B R (&)
Guangzhou Mirabell The PRC/ Retailing of HK$3,500,000 - 100
General Merchandise sino-foreign footwear in 3,500,000/ 7T
Company Limited* co-operative Mainland China
EMNEZEERE joint venture EPBEAENE
BRAA* hE BERTEXRK
hONEERE
Hornet Agents Limited* BVI Holding of Ordinary - 100
RERAEHS trademarks in US$1
Hong Kong and Ak
overseas 1% 7T
REEKEAM
BN R
SECNEEE
Inshoesnet Footwear Hong Kong Retailing of Ordinary - 100
(HK) Limited BB footwear in HK$1,000,000
MnER (FE) Hong Kong TR
AR AT ERBNE 1,000,000/ 7T
BERTEXK
King Fully Development Hong Kong Investment Ordinary - 100
Limited e holding and HK$10,000
HEFNERER QA trading of =Rl
footwear in 10,0007 7T
Hong Kong
RERR K
HEEBRE
BEREERK
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GROUP STRUCTURE

EEREB
Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and kind of
legal entity
Name R i B
DNRER REEERER
Subsidiaries (continued)
MEAR (&)
Manner Holdings Limited  Hong Kong
EFEEERAA B

Mirabell China Limited* BVI

KBRS
Mirabell Footwear Hong Kong
Limited BB
XBEEEARRAA
Netfashion Company Hong Kong

Limited BB
W R ARDR

L/IRABELL

Principal
activities and
place of
operation
FTEXK
AR i B

Property holding
in Hong Kong
EERRENE

Investment
holding and
trading of
footwear in
Hong Kong

REBERK
HEEBRE
BEREERK

Retailing of
footwear in
Hong Kong

EEENSE
BERTEXRK

Property holding
in Macau

ERFIFEME

Particulars

of issued
share capital/
registered
capital
28T/
| RAE

Ordinary
HK$2
TRk
278 7T

Ordinary
Us$1
EEels
(EV

Ordinary
HK$200
Non-voting
deferred
HK$2,016,000
EgEEN
200/ 7T
BRERE

g U
2,016,000% 7T

Ordinary
HK$10,000
EEels
10,000/ 7T

Interest held

PE 15 B A< 22
Direct Indirect
B Gk
% %
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100



GROUP STRUCTURE
KERB

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and kind of
legal entity
B i B
REEERER

Name

NG
Subsidiaries (continued)
AR (&)

BEREEMNERER The PRC/wholly

BR AR foreign-owned
enterprise
hEINE
BEME
Senses Marketing Hong Kong
International Limited BB
5 8 Bl B B R
BRRA]

Shoesnet Company Limited Hong Kong
EEARAQTE BB

AEERES (L8)
AR AR

The PRC/wholly
foreign-owned
enterprise

SN |
BELE

REZERES (LE)
ERAT*

The PRC/wholly
foreign-owned
enterprise

5
BERE

Principal
activities and
place of
operation
TEXH
R

Manufacturing of
footwear in
Mainland China

EHREARERSE
BEREERK

Wholesaling of
footwear in
Hong Kong

EEBRSE
BERMEXRG

Property holding
in Mainland China
B A B
RAEYE

Wholesaling of
footwear in
Mainland China

EHREARERSE
HEBEEK

Retailing and
wholesaling of
footwear in
Mainland China

EHREARERSE
BERTER

R

Particulars

of issued
share capital/
registered
capital
B®T/
B3N &

HK$1,800,000
1,800,000/ 7T

Ordinary
HK$10,000
TRk
10,000/ 7T

Ordinary
HK$10,000
EEels
10,000/ 7T

US$200,000
200,000 7T

US$700,000
700,000 7T

Interest held

PE 15 B 7 22
Direct Indirect
BEE GE:3
% %
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
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GROUP STRUCTURE

SERE

Name

AR

Subsidiaries (continued)

MEAR (&)

Sun View (Macao

Commercial Offshore)

Company Limited*
Ax CRPIBEFEE X
%) BR QA *

Scarpa Company Limited

EoRRAF

Netshoes Company
Limited*
BrERR LA

=B H (R
BRQE]*

Mirabell Footwear
(Taiwan) Limited*

REXEEEXE
BRRAA]*

L/IRABELL

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and kind of
legal entity
3P AL
REEBERER

Macau
B P

Hong Kong
BA

Hong Kong
BB

The PRC/wholly
foreign-owned
enterprise

RN
BEME

BVI
REEUES

Principal
activities and
place of
operation
FTEXK
AR i B

Providing
procurement
service in Macau

TER PR
KERS

Trading of footwear
in Hong Kong

EEABRE
BEREEXEK

Property holding in
Mainland China

T B A B
REYE

Retailing of
footwear in
Mainland China

ERBERERE
BERTEXRK

Retailing of
footwear in
Taiwan
AENRE
BERTEXRK

Particulars

of issued
share capital/
registered
capital
28T/
| RAE

MOP100,000
100,000/2 P9 7T

Ordinary
HK$10,000
TRk
10,000/ 7T

Ordinary
HK$10,000
EEels
10,000/ 7T

HK$2,000,000
2,000,000/% 7T

Ordinary
US$1
EREL
(E

Interest held

PE 15 B A< 22
Direct Indirect
B Gk
% %
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100



GROUP STRUCTURE
KERB

Place of
incorporation/ Principal
establishment activities and
and kind of place of
legal entity operation
Name HM R  FEER
NEEH REEBRERN NREE®HH
Associate
4 N
Best Quality Samoa Investment holding
Investments Limited* EED REER

*  Companies not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers

The above table includes the subsidiaries and associate of
the Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results of the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. Giving
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Particulars

of issued

share capital/
registered Interest held
capital PB4 IR A 7 22

BT/ Direct Indirect
=F i A% A< B =

% %

Ordinary - 30
US$50,000
R
50,0003 7T

* HFRERRUKEEI N EEEFELZ A
Al

EERR ERABREZARBIZHER
ANBERR] HARBAFEXEEE

TEIBNEEFE I EEZRD MK
RUEMHBLAR ZHBE EXRAE
FERBRITEK
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

ETFHBERE
2006/2007  2005/2006  2004/2005  2003/2004  2002/2003
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET FET FET FET
Turnover X 934,225 866,238 747,839 645,617 625,616
Gross profit EH 556,722 505,853 439,126 378,428 361,493
Gross profit margin ESy R 59.59% 58.40% 58.72% 58.61% 57.78%
Operating profit il 60,974 54,496 65,068 50,464 40,335
Operating profit margin A& & % | = 6.53% 6.29% 8.70% 7.82% 6.45%
Profit attributable to AABER
equity holders of BEA
the Company JE 16 % 7 105,462 65,497 76,139 64,237 48,344
Bank balances and cash BITHESH R
e 108,246 114,891 86,357 96,135 96,696
Bank loan and overdraft  R{ITEZ K
EY 25,008 47,817 31,084 32,772 31,068
Total assets BmEE 1,449,446 604,508 569,122 490,642 429,564
Total liabilities BmafE 165,119 166,445 147,804 122,842 111,379
Total equity s 1,284,327 438,063 421,318 367,800 318,185
Gearing ratio BERBER 0.02 0.11 0.07 0.09 0.10
Return on total BEEDRE
assets employed 7.28% 10.83% 13.38% 13.09% 11.25%

Summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of RERAFRFEZREREERR B
the Group for the latest five years have been extracted BME e NEERNFERAIEFREZ

from this annual report and prior years’ annual reports of F o
the Group.

143 | Z/IRABELL






‘Wabimilail 1 - wenw rrerabeal e Rk

g

J0Y§Ped (0

1 T AL



	COVER
	INSIDE COVER
	CONTENTS 
	CORPORATE INFORMATION 
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT 
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
	NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
	REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS 
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
	CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT 
	CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 
	BALANCE SHEET 
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
	CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
	NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
	GROUP STRUCTURE 
	FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
	INSIDE BACK COVER
	BACK COVER

